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Mission Statement

AV an

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and franchisees
to appreciate our education, products and services, which are made by the love and
kindness of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who made modern ladies beautiful, confident

and wealthy.
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Financial Highlights
g

Selected Financial Data PREHERE FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016
HKS000 (except pershare data) ~ THr (BREERI) —E—F —ZT-——-F —T-—=F _—T-NF —FT-hHF ZB-RE
FHEE UHEE BIREE BHEE YHEE BHEE

Revenue WA 591,295 483438 439421 505,761 506913 475,225
Cost of sales HEKA 122,162 103,592 106,321 116,981 109419 122,366
Gross profit EH 469,133 379846 333,100 388780 394,494 352,859
Operating profit TERA 173,647 155,251 83,052 116,274 170392 196,217
Profit for the year RER R 115,172 119,108 58459 71,480 136,830 148,403
Dividends RRA 170,179 45648 52,655 105,871 136944 247,660
EPS - basic BREF-EX 50,0580 $0.0600 50,0290 50,0360 50,0680 $0.0740
DPS SRR 50,0850 50,0228 500263 $0.05288 $0.0684 $0.1237
Return on Equity (ROE) BRAE R 146% 159% 74% 92% 187% 22.7%

Return on Assets (ROA) BEDR 120% 135% 6.0% 7.3% 154% 18.0%
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Management Discussion and Apalysis

BEEN W R

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

Turnover of the Group in 2016 decreased by 6.3% to HK$475.2 million compared
with HK$506.9 million in 2015. The decline was mainly due to a decrease of
HK$28.8 million of currency translation as a result of a lower average exchange
rate in 2016.

Turnover in the PRC market decreased by 7.7% from HK$418.5 million in 2015 to
HK$386.4 million in 2016, while turnover in the Taiwan market increased by 0.8%
to HK$85.7 million compared with HK$85.0 million in 2015.

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, decreased
by 7.1% from HKS$3.4 million in 2015 to HK$3.2 million in 2016. Contribution
from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 0.7% of the Group's
turnover.

The Group's overall gross profit margin declined from 78.4% in 2015 to 74.3% in
2016 mainly due to the new PRC Consumption Tax regulations imposed in 2016

and higher promotion discount.

g q e
B

REBR 2 EEEH-ZZT — A FHI506,900,0007%5
TLNER63%E —F— \i #9475,200,00078 JT °
BMLEBERAE-T—AFBREMNFHER  F
B E I 28,800,000 TL AR A ©

PFEAEMS 2 EXEBRHR_-_T—HAFH
418,500,000 7T T~ K7 7%%E —F — N F 1
386,400,000/ 7T ¢ MEEMH 2 EFBAIR=
= — A F /985,000,000 7T _E H08%E —F —
7N K985,700,00078 T ©

HibthE (REEE - BRAD R 28
%%ETEW 1% * A =Z — A F 23,400,000/ 7T
THZE T —7XF 23,200,000/ 7T ° ;2 Z M@
HAEB2XE L AREREM - BHAEE
EEERE0T% °

AEEERBERENER _ZT-—HFH
78.4% NRE — T —/NEHT43% EEIZ%_
T NFRBRERTTE BB EOIFBER kA
SEFANTISHEEZN

Turnover by activities RERB D 2EER 2016 2015 Changes
—E-KRF —AF i)
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET % FET %
Products Efm 469,894 98.9% 500,480 98.7% (30,586) -6.1%
Services 0 5,331 1.1% 6433 13% (1,102) -17.1%
Total #at 475,225 100.0% 506913 100.0% (31,688) -6.3%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand. Product
sales are the Group's key revenue source and primarily come from franchised
spas, self-owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product
sales in 2016 amounted to HK$469.9 million, or 98.9% of the Group’s total
revenue, representing a decrease of HK$30.6 million or by 6.1% when compared
with product sales of HK$500.5 million in 2015. The decrease in product sales
was mainly driven by the currency translation issue mentioned in the paragraph
headed “Overview" above.

Services

Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, training and other
services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. Currently the Group has one self-owned spa in China and 3 self-
owned spas in Taiwan.

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2016, service income

decreased by 17.1% to HK$5.3 million compared with HK$6.4 million in 2015.

Management Discussion-and Analysis

EERENWE DM

Em

SEEZUTEAE] mEBERERIEEES
o %éﬂ&# MEM - BER MR

Txﬁxéuu ° Euuiﬁ%ﬁzﬁigix”&
)\X/K CHEZREMEKERL  BELK
ERKERLRBERARERE - ——RF2
E 0 Y & 58 3£469,900,00078 7T (8K 16 A& &=
HBULA9BI%) M- E—HEVERMEERE
500,500,0007% 7T &k 230,600,000/ JT 2k6.1% ©
EmHEEERITER XX [#R] —BRATit

Z
-3

BR 7%

RS RA B ARG KER LIRS - B %
H AR5 -
REEFBHEABRKEKERLIRENEZE

2 RBFRMOKERS - BAT AEEEPEAK
BEHEA - RABKEKERLLERERE=
REERERERL

RIRITINBEEZHE - LKEIT%%WJDEE%
BN DTS Z (E A AR Y et o = —
TN H&ﬁ%ﬂkﬁﬁf%—EiiZ@mo,ooomfc
A 17.1% % 5,300,000 7T °

Service income PR W 2016 2015 Changes
—E-RF —hF 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET % FHET % FHET %
Training income =3l M 401 7.5% 438 6.8% (37) -84%
Spa service income KRR M 4,756 89.2% 5347 83.1% (591) -11.1%
Others Hith 174 3.3% 648 10.1% (474) 73.2%
Total st 5,331 100.0% 6,433 100.0% (1,102) -17.1%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWNE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B 7%l BE (4)
Services (Continued) R (&)
Turnover by ZiigE D 2016 2015 Changes
geographical region ZEER —E-XE =1 2
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET %
PRC R K BE
Products Em 383,876 414933 (31,057) 7.5%
Services BR7& 2,533 3,591 (1,058) -29.5%
PRC Total R KRR T 386,409 418,524 (32,115) 7.7%
Taiwan =)-|
Products Em 82,857 82,145 712 09%
Services AR 2,798 2842 (44) -1.5%
Taiwan Total =) 15 85,655 84,987 668 0.8%
Others Hit
Products Ef 3,161 3,402 (241 7.1%
Services AR7% = = - -
Others Total Hihaast 3,161 3,402 (241) 7.1%
The PRC Market B KRE T IS

Despite the slowdown in PRC's economic growth and the keener competition
in the cosmetic industry, the turnover in the PRC market decreased by 1.0% in
2016 to RMB332.1 million compared with RMB335.6 million in 2015. However,
due to the foreign currency translation factor, the Group’s turnover in the
PRC market represented in HK dollars decreased by 7.7% in 2016 to HK$386.4
million compared with HK$418.5 million in 2015. Gross margin on product sales
decreased from 82.0% in 2015 to 76.0% in 2016, as a result of change in PRC
Consumption Tax regulations and larger promotion discount on product sales
during the period under review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Taiwan Market

The Group's turnover in the Taiwan market increased by 0.8% from HK$85.0
million in 2015 to HK$85.7 million in 2016 due to Taiwan economic recovery.
Gross margin on product sales decreased by 0.4% from 79.7% in 2015 to 79.3%
in 2016, and such change is insignificant.

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains increased by 28.7% from HK$28.3 million in 2015
to HK$36.4 million in 2016, which mainly comprised interest income, rental
income from investment properties, financial refunds and compensation income
arising from termination of a tenancy agreement of HK$6.2 million, HKS$2.1
million, HK$6.5 million and HK$19.1 million respectively.

Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
decreased to 23.8% in 2016 compared with 31.5% in 2015. It decreased by
HKS$46.6 million from HK$159.7 million in 2015 to HKS$113.1 million in 2016.
Advertising and promotion expenses decreased to 6.1% of the Group’s total
turnover in 2016 as compared with 6.7% in 2015, and decreased by HK$5.0
million from HK$33.8 million in 2015 to HK$28.8 million in 2016. Other key
expenses include salaries of HK$44.3 million, travel and entertainment expenses
of HKS$4.7 million, depreciation charges of HK$5.4 million as well as rentals of
offices and sales counters of HK$14.4 million in 2016.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$13.8 million, or 15.8%, to HK$73.4
million in 2016 compared with HK$87.2 million in 2015. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits of HKS$25.1 million, legal
and professional fees of HK$8.8 million, depreciation charges of HK$8.8 million

and office and utilities expenses of HKS6.5 million.

Management Discussion-and Analysis

EERENWE DM

B — T — A F 285,000,000/ 7T £ F0.8% =
ZZT— 7N 285,700,000/ T © E MmiH SRR
EMEHZZT—RF2797% FK04A%E T
—NEZ793% 0 ZEHN o

Hit s MA G

E Yz A5 B = F — R F 228,300,000
7 TT I N28.7%E — T — X 236,400,000/
TLeRZE—RE Ht=mEE20ENE
Was R EWE2HESWE  UBERRAKERE
RIEBEHBamEENHERS 255
6,200,000 JT * 2,100,000/ JT * 6,500,000/ 7T
%19,100,0007JC °

2 RATHAX

DEREEERGASBEEE 2BOL
H-E—AF2Z3N5% TRBRE-T—XFH
23.8% ° % %F & AR 146,600,000/ 7T © B
T — R F 21597000008 LR E T — R 4F
Z113,1000008 7T BERHEERZ GRS
EBEEE s BB T —RF267%
RE—T—XNEM6I% WH-_ZT—AFZ
33,800,000/ 7T @, 45,000,000/ TLE = F — /<
228,800,000/ c R_E—/RF - HMhE
BRI IH B B IE F ©44,300,00008 7T © E IRk E
X2 & B 7 24,700,000 7T~ #7 & 325,400,000
BT AR IR E R BB S 5 £14,400,000%
5T o

BITH S A =T — A F 287,200,000 7T
F%13,800,0005 7T (20158%) &2 - T — NF
73,400,000/ 7T c (THAX FZBFEE TKA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWNE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Other expenses and other losses

Other expenses and other losses decreased by HKS$2.1 million, from HK$8.6
million in 2015 to HK$6.5 million in 2016. The decrease was mainly due to accrual
of HK$2.2 million in 2015 for Taiwan dividend withholding tax under-paid from
2011 to 2014

Profit before tax

Taking into account the lower gross profit, and saving distribution and
administrative expenses, profit before tax increased by 15.2% from HK$170.4
million in 2015 to HK$196.2 million in 2016, and the pre-tax profit margin
increased to 41.3% in 2016 from 33.6% in 2015.

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased by HK$14.2 million to HK$47.8 million in 2016
compared with HK$33.6 million in 2015. The effective tax rate of the Group in
2015 and 2016 was 19.7% and 24.4% respectively. The lower effective tax rate
in 2015 was mainly due to the HK$14.4 million tax refund of changing tax rate
received for dividend income in 2009, 2010 and 2012 and royalty fee which were
paid in 2011 and 2012 due to lower withholding tax rate approved by PRC tax
bureau in 2014 and received in 2015.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year increased by 8.5% from HKS$136.8 million in 2015 to HK$1484
million in 2016.

16 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

B 7% Bl B8 (4
Bt HAE L

Ef S BB LB = F — F F 28,600,000/
ETB‘#:I:_ = /\¢Z65ooooo,%75 DR

2,100,000 7T - A FEEFEMETHRLEZRAA
RIE—RAFHHEZR —_E——FE2 T
F2OYNTHEERSFEHATEH2,200,000
BT e

BRBE AR R

EREFEE - SERTRAZRD -
A1 Rl e = % —

B &
T £ 7.170,400,0007%8 7T I FF

1520 - & ﬁ¢2196zooooo§%ﬁ ° ﬁﬁﬂ
FERNY - —RF2336% LAE-FT—X
F7413% °

g

MBS H B —Z— A4 233,600,000 7T N
14,200,000/ JT & — & — /X F 247,800,000/
T REAR - E—RER_T—RFIEE
FHREDBIAE19.7%K%24.4% - —F—HENEIE
MNEBRREEIZEAR S —NFPEMREE

PHETRENBENRE Ak —F——F
RZZE-——EXMNN_TThF _T—-TF
N ——F 7R BRI N EIEEBEHRK
BT 4400000,%755’1%)31 AB) T IERGE - MR
RER T —RAFR

REERF

REEHN B T — R F 2 136,800,0005 018

hn8.5% % = F — 7N 2148,400,000/8 7T °



FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2016 was approximately HK$128.0
million (HK$140.1 million in 2015). However due to a special dividend paid
in 2016, as at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$428.6 million (HK$502.7 million as at 31 December 2015) with

no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, the
Group's gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’
equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both year-end dates. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 were 4.2 times and 3.5 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and the notes
thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group's liquidity
position remains strong and it has sufficient financial resources to finance its
commitments and to meet its working capital requirements.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

Most of the Group's revenues are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and New
Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Taiwan. As at 31 December 2016, approximately 78.4% (80.9% as at 31 December
2015) of the Group's bank balances and cash was denominated in RMB, while
approximately 17.0% (16.6% as at 31 December 2015) in NTD. The remaining
4.6% (2.5% as at 31 December 2015) was denominated in US Dollars, Hong Kong
Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. The Group reviews its
foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge against such risks when necessary.

Management Discussion-and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWNE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW O EE
Distribution channels DiEEE
Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by REREEDZ owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership EREE Spa Spa Spa Counter ~ Counter  Counter Total
mEEE

BE HELE kEPL  ERELE  BELE £if
KERL KB At =i Ly | EH st

Asat31December2016 R=ZE—RE
+=ZRA=+-H
PRC AR 786 1 787 0 13 13 800
Taiwan =) 249 3 252 0 0 0 252
Others Hif 30 0 30 0 0 0 30
Total Mt 1,065 4 1,069 0 13 13 1,082
Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by RREESD 2 owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership IgaE Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total
JlEzE
73 BELE KEPL  RALE  BELE i
KERL KB &5 =i Eif &5t @t
Asat31December2015 ~ RZZ—AH%F
+=RA=1+—H
PRC B ARE 778 1 779 0 14 14 793
Taiwan =) 246 3 249 0 0 0 249
Others Hif 30 0 30 0 0 0 30
Total Bt 1,054 4 1,058 0 14 14 1072
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

Management Discussion-and Analysis

EERENWE DM

2016 2015
2016 2015 Average Average
SHEEE Average Average sales sales
Average sales per store FHHER store* store* per store per store Changes
ZE-XF —T-1F ZB-XF —T-ILF
ERTE ESTYS SHES BRES
#A~ B PHUHEE THHER L)
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT %
PRC BTN 796.5 9405 485,000 445,000 40,000 9.0%
Taiwan =) 250.5 2545 342,000 334,000 8,000 2.4%
Group total** CSCTE 1,047.0 1,1950 451,000 421,000 30,000 7.1%

Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period
total)/2

*%

Group total does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia turnover and store
count.

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As
at 31 December 2016, there were 1,069 spas and 13 concessionary counters. Of
these, 1,065 were franchised spas, and 4 spas and 13 concessionary counters
were directly operated by the Group. No concessionary counters were entrusted
to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees who are
responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to use only
Natural Beauty or “NB”" products in their spas. A wide array of services including
hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis, are provided in
all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available at the concessionary counters
in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 63 new stores were opened and 53 stores were closed
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Average sales per store increased
from HK$421,000 in 2015 to HK$451,000 in 2016.

* T EMEE W (B8 + B, 2

o EEBFTERmNES  RPALSERATZ
BEBENIEHEE -

REBWHFIEREEKETLERBEEATE
BEDHRERE RN _T—R"F+_A=1
— B REEHEA069B KEFR D M13ER
& o & e L0605 M EKEFR L KA
RNEBEELENARAEFR LR 3EZAE -
WHRERAE=ZHEEERKEENE - NBEKESD
DEMBERES @ HEERERFKEPLH
BAKE - HEZKERLMEAFERBERE
3 [NB] @M E M « FKEFRLHREZER
% BAEKE - EED N B BB DA I T S
DR - MAEERAREERZRENEERE
DHT ©

NEBmME  R-E—A"E+_A=+—81
FRN - AEEAHEFRGEFIER - B3
MEH - BRESZFHHEEEA S —1F
2421,0008 T E = F — N F 2 451,0008 7T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWNE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which allows
it to maintain its competitive edge, to continuously improve the quality of its
existing products and develop new products. The Group has been collaborating
with overseas skin-care companies on technological development. The bio-
technology materials the Group uses for its NB products are imported from
Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and development team
comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in
cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB's products are constantly
enhanced and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise
and experiences, together with Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu's 40-year-plus industry experience
and knowledge to continue to create high-quality beauty and skin care products.
NB principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture products and adopts
special formulae to cater to the specific needs of women with delicate skin. NB
products accommodate the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

NB has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human genome
and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging NB-1 product
family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-resistance and
slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United States to protect
the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

In 2016, the Group’s flagship NB-1 products accounted for more than 50% of
total product sales. Sales of NB-1 branded products reached HK$238 million in
2016. With effective product line rationalization plan, NB-1 series was successfully
launched several new products, among them, spa care product strengthened
and consolidated the status of Natural Beauty in beauty and spa, meanwhile,
increased product consumption and brand loyalty. The new products received
good response from franchisees and achieved strong sales, especially NB-1
Plus Brightening and Repair Essence. Once listed, the market responded
enthusiastically, causing consumers competing’s pursuit race, sales of which
achieved HK$36 million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Human Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 558 employees, of whom 447
were based in the PRC, 109 in Taiwan and 2 in other countries and regions. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2016 was approximately
HKS104.6 million (HK$122.3 million in 2015
costs of HK$15.1 million (HK$16.2 million in 2015), with no stock option expenses
(HK$9.3 million in 2015
attract, retain and motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular

), including retirement benefit related

). Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to

basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$19.0 million in 2016 was mainly related
to the production equipment amounting to HK$7.5 million, IT infrastructure
amounting to HK$1.5 million and office and Spa renovation amounting to
HKS7.4 million.

Management Discussion-and Analysis

EERENWE DM

RIEEE ()
ANER

RZE—RE+-A=+—H8 AEE&H

1B A558BEE  E 4475 R 5L AR B KB
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWNE DM

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The PRC government’s continued plan for urbanization and incentive for
individual entrepreneurship should fuel the continuous growth in the beauty
and personal care market.

With the escalating rental and labor costs in China, we will continue to pursue
a prudent growth strategy and implement the following strategies so as to
proactively strengthen our position as a leading skin care brand and spa operator
in the Greater China Region.

- We will encourage people to start their own business at NB and focus on
launching more stores in tier 2 and tier 3 cities in the PRC.

- We will adapt to the trend of health care industry and make more
marketing promotional efforts to drive the growth of health supplement.

- We will speed up the upgrading of current products to satisfy the needs
of consumers. We will rebuild the image of professional skin care product
and strengthen the education, training and communication of concept of
cosmetology.

- We will integrate online and offline marketing resources with the aim to
establish business model of “Online To Offline”.

- We will continuously seek and explore new marketing channels and
opportunities for skin care products, such as preventive medical

cosmetology and e-business.

- We will set up more training centres in various regions to offer free training

and career guidance.
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Report on.Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited firmly believes that strong corporate
governance is the foundation to delivering the corporate objective of
maximizing return to its stakeholders over the long term. The core of the
governance structure is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”)
which is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
sound internal control and effective risk management to enhance transparency,
accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the confidence from
our shareholders and other stakeholders and to safeguard the interests of
shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company’s website: http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/

irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are
applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2016, save as explained and
disclosed hereinbelow, the Company applied the principles and complied
with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code on Corporate Governance”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and
explains deviations, if any, from the Code on Corporate Governance.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to
continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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Report on-Corporate Governance
TRERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS

AANTNELEERER &)
A. EBEE

A1. Directors' Attendance and Training Records Al EEHFERIFIGTE
The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of ESeHB7EKEEK  HFE
three Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three FE3BMITES 1 BIFERITESA
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board meets four times EBUNTEST EFEEHF
during a year as a minimum and, during 2016, it met four times. ELBRITNREGE W —RF
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the BOTHREE - HEZT—RF
Directors’ attendance records at the meetings of the Board and TZA=F—HILFEAN  FHEE
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting as well as FZEE U KEMAKFE  BUNE
the Directors' training records during the year ended 31 December EREFEEE  SHEEZE®
2016 are as follows: FEMBRERE 2 M8 - UK
EEEIIRGENT
Remuneration Audit  Executive Nomination Annual
Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Board ~ General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting  Course
¥HZEE BNERE YMZRE REZEE EZg RE &
es g3 EE €% 88 BEEAE BB
Executive Directors HTEE
Dr. TSI Yen-Yu EEIBL a na 44 112 24 o1 Notea
TEm TER fiita
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta FHEELE n/a n/a 44 0 3/4 01 Notea
TEm TER iita
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng [ 23 n/a 4/4 n/a 4/4 N Note a
TER TEA iia
Non- Executive Director FHTES
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu Bt 03 34 44 n/a 3/4 01 Notea
TER Mitta
Independent Non-Executive Directors ¥ 3k %T&EE
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BmELE 03 4 n/a 12 24 01 Notea
TEm Mitta
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing! BFIEED " 1/ n/a " " na  Notea
TEm Nam Wit
Mr.LU Chi-Chant EEERE 33 44 na 0 44 o1 Notea
TEm Mitta
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang® ABExE? 12 03 n/a 1/1 03 01 Notea
TEm Mitta
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and

Committee meetings in person could appoint another Director

as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as

attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.

Notes:

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing resigned as an Independent Non-Executive
Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive
Committee on 1 February 2016. One Board meeting, Nomination
Committee meeting, Audit Committee meeting and Remuneration
Committee meeting were held before 1 February 2016 respectively.

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee on
1 February 2016. Three Board meetings, one Nomination Committee
meeting, three Audit Committee meetings and two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held after 1 February 2016.

Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

Report on Corporate Governance
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) and
the respective Charters of the Committees.

The agenda of Board meeting or Committee meeting and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Director of Legal and the Company
Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advising the Board on corporate governance
and compliance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-Executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such

meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the Code on
Corporate Governance.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors'
and officers' liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising
from corporate activities.
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Report on Corporate Governance

EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A2.

Chairperson, Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu serves as the Chairperson, while Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
is the Vice Chairman. Ms. CHANG Karen Yi Fen served as the Chief
Executive Officer until expiry of the term of her employment on
1 January 2016 and Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung was appointed as
Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Group on the same day and
tentatively holds office as Chief Executive Officer. Following the re-
designation of Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung as Chief Executive Officer on
1 September 2016, the roles of the Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer are separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group strategic
and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer has the overall
responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's

responsibilities.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present. Since the Chairperson is also an Executive
Director of the Company, respective Independent Non-Executive
Directors are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, the existing Non-
Executive Director is also a member of the Executive Committee,
it was considered there were ample opportunities for the
Chairperson to communicate with the Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors), therefore no
separate meetings were held between the Chairperson and the
Non-Executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A3.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the

Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board (there are
three Independent Non-Executive Directors out of seven Directors.)
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
We consider all Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Report on Corporate Governance

EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts, including Executive and
Non-Executive Directors, usually serve three-year terms or one-year
term, and are subject to re-election.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
("AGM"). Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
will retire by rotation according to the Articles and all of them, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the related
circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we consider the
independent non-executive director is still independent and
our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the
re-election of such independent non-executive director. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, none of the existing Independent
Non-Executive Directors has served on the Board for more than
nine years.

Disclosure of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

Renewal of Director’s Service Contract
On 8 December 2016

(i) The Board approved the renewal of the Director’s Service
Contract of Mr. LU Chi-Chant as Independent Non-Executive
Director, for a term of one year commencing on 18
December 2016; and

(i) The Board approved the renewal of the Director's Service
Contracts of Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang
as Independent Non-Executive Directors, for a term of one
year commencing on 1 February 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Chairman), Mr.
CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and Mr. LEE
Ming-Ta respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s board of
directors and having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board annually and making recommendations to the Board on
selection of candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy. It also assesses the independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/irwebsite and the Stock

Exchange’s website.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in year 2016.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee had considered and recommended to the Board,
among other things, the appointment of Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang
as an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 February 2016, and
the re-designation of Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung as Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 September 2016.

During the year 2016, the Nomination Committee conducted an
annual review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code provision A5.2
of the Code on Corporate Governance. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained and no material matter was identified during

the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal advisers, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2016, all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Non-Executive Director is also a
member of the Executive Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2016 are set out under “Directors’
Attendance and Training Records” on page 24 of this Annual Report.

Securities Transactions made by Directors and Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”") as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required standard
of the Model Code has been complied with throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company pursuant to code provision A6.4. No
incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or the Company’s
Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted
after making reasonable enquiry.
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EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Company organized one Directors’ training in

Taiwan on risk control and crisis management.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal
continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result
of the listing of the securities of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems and procedures that the
Company, its Directors and senior management should follow in
order to ensure compliance with such obligations.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. All Independent Non-Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Director were unable to attend the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2016 (2016 AGM") due to other

overseas commitments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A7.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and

other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION

B1.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, one
Executive Director and one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. LU
Chi-Chant (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang,
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-Executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his/her associates was involved in
determining his or her own remuneration. It also ensures that
remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/irwebsite and the Stock

Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION (Continued)

B2.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the proposed bonus
awards for all employees and senior management, and the
2016 merit increase; reviewed and recommended the Director’s
Service Contract of Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang as Independent Non-
Executive Director and the renewal of Directors’ Service Contracts
of Mr. CHEN Ruey Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant and Mr. HSIEH Pang-
Chang as Independent Non-Executive Directors; and reviewed and
recommended the employment terms of Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung
as Chief Operating Officer, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Executive Officer (subsequent to re-designation). With reference
to the Remuneration Committee Charter, the Remuneration
Committee members had carefully reviewed and considered the
contribution of each of the Directors to the Group, the Directors'
experience in the beauty and spa business and the market rate paid
by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and
actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing accounts for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C1.

Financial reporting (Continued)

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 75
to 81.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well
as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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TERER/MSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and

internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, manufacturing and procurement,

financial reporting, human resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following principles, features and processes:

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed with the principles to enhance the operation effectiveness,
reduce loss in assets, ensure the reliability of financial reports and
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others,
environment control, risk assessment, activity control, information
and communication, and internal surveillance.

40 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

RATHNLEEEAER @)
BERES (8)

C.

2.

EkEE R EPEEE

EEgAREAHRRERE LRI
Emzges WAESETHT:

ZRGHBERIE - ux*r/\r}LEiEE
B IEEBR R BEEKER B ENR
% MBRERTEEEANKE
PRtk 18 L 1E A BT IEBE IR

iE o

EFESARERNEREBEART]
SERER S B ARES PR B A0 Bk
HEREE - WHRAARRILR
MRAERERNEREE AR
BT Z % o

IE]

ERRESMEESREERE
EI L.

W ES B HEEREE RN TR
BRRRET » B MEER -

RATIEHIEWERMNZIESFEER
MERE B RIES| - LB KR
BEBRRF M AR - BIEEE
B RUEREE - BMBER - A
NERKETRH o

ZAN/NSI D)
T T HIRRN -

RETE N A EREEIE R AR
FrE N2 HIE

ARBH R EE MR R
TIRREEELRE P EER
KRB HRE O] FEEMEE
R BTN IR A G E

o

ZERHGRETEHIRE - BT
i~ ZHES) - B E R AT
EEEEER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company organizes personnel and seeks assistance from
external professional advisory institutions to establish the risk
management and internal control systems which are subject to the
review by the Company’s management team and approval by the
Audit Committee and the Board.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security. Self-evaluation
has been conducted annually to confirm that control policies are
properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and compliance
with best practices. In coordination with department heads, the
management assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress, and
reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and the effectiveness
of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also reports to the Audit

Committee on the implementation of internal control.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016
to enhance risk management and internal control systems in a
timely manner. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for
performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provides the effectiveness of
its implementation and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate
its employees to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting control or other matters of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board conducted
reviews of the risk management and internal control systems and
considered that such systems of the Group had been implemented
effectively and adequately. The Board's review will also consider the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and Relevant Employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman),
Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu,
respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee members
are Independent Non-Executive Directors, with Mr. LU Chi-
Chant possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is
a partner of the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information
it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to
cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty. The Audit
Committee is also responsible to perform corporate governance
functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Code on Corporate
Governance.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining the
Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the Company’s
website: http.// www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/irwebsite and the

Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

C

44

C4.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
cs.

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016. During the year 2016, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2015 and interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2016 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2016,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company's expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders' approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for year 2017.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group's
auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to HK$2,999,000 and
non-audit services amounted to HK$343,000 which were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D1.

D2.

Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- Long-term objectives and strategies;

- Extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- Preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- Material banking facilities;

- Material acquisitions and disposals;

- Material connected transactions; and

- Annual internal controls assessment.

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and
Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf with

specific terms of reference setting out their roles and functions
available at the Company’s website: http://www.corpasia.net/

hongkong/0157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee
comprises three Executive Directors and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Chairman), Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (KPls) and track
performance.

The Executive Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the attendance records are set out
under “Directors’ Attendance and Training Records” on page 24 of
this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

ET.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or
their respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has held one AGM since the issuance of the last
annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of a listed issuer should attend the annual general meeting. The
chairman of the board should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees to attend.
In their absence, the chairman of the board should invite another
member of the committee or failing this, his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Board, and the Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee, were unable to attend
the 2016 AGM due to other overseas commitments. The Board
had arranged for Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, an Executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Executive Committee of the Group, who is well versed in all
business activities and operations of the Group, to attend and
chair the 2016 AGM on behalf of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and to respond to
shareholders' questions.

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of
annual general meetings by, for example, giving adequate time
to all Directors to accommodate their work arrangements and
providing all necessary support for their presence and participation
at annual general meetings, such that the Chairperson of the
Board and all Directors will be able to attend future annual general
meetings of the Company.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E.  COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

ET.

Effective communication (Continued)
The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2016
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, which is available at
the Company's website (http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/

irwebsite) and the Stock Exchange's website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of
Directors by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication
Policy are available for download from the Company's website
(http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company'’s website: http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/
irwebsite to provide comprehensive information related to
shareholders.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@enblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles is also available on the Company’s website:
http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/irwebsite and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E2.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2016 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2016 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2016
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2016
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that
of the Company at http://www.corpasia.net/hongkong/0157/

irwebsite.

Investor relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for good investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company's website: http.//www.corpasia.

net/hongkong/0157/irwebsite.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. HO Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an external service provider and

has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. Her main

contact person at the Company is Ms. Jenny ZHU (Director of Legal).

Ms. HO has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year 2016.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EENRGREEERE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. TSAI YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN)

Aged 69, founder and Chairperson of the Company, the wife of Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
(Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and mother of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
(Executive Director) and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director), is an Executive
Director and member of both the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. She has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY
BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. She is
currently also a director of some of our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and
Taiwan subsidiaries. Dr. TSAl has been awarded numerous honours, positions and
prizes such as:

Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the U.S.A.
Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association
Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

Taiwan's Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women's
Business Association

“Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

"Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
“Ji Qing Chuang Ye"of CCTV

Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

st Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

VICE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LEE MING-TA (ALIAS LEE MING-TAH)

Aged 69, is the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director of the Group. He is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 18 December 2015. Mr. LEE is the husband of
Dr. TSAl'Yen-Yu, whom is the Chairperson and an Executive Director of the Group.
He is also the father of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director) and Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director). Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. LEE had
worked for various financial institutions at senior management level for over 10
years in corporate management and staff training. Mr. LEE graduated in Fengchia
University in Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance. He has
also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. He is currently also a director of some of
our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU CHIEN-CHENG

Aged 45, the son of Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director) and
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and the elder brother
of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu who is also a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng was a Non-Executive Director and re-designated as Executive
Director effective from 15 December 2011. He is involved in the financial
management and strategic management of the Group at Board level. He is
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee
since 7 February 2013 and 18 December 2015, respectively. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
graduated from the University of Westminster in UK with a master degree of
business administration and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999.
He has been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May
2007 and 11 July 2008, respectively. He is currently also a director of some of our
British Virgin Islands, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU SH-HSYU

Aged 43, is the daughter of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director)
and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and the younger
sister of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director). Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been
an Executive Director since 21 September 2004 until she was redesignated
as a Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009, was further redesignated
as an Executive Director on 15 December 2011 and was redesignated as
a Non-Executive Director on 7 February 2013. She is also a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu graduated from the London School of Economics
with a Master of Science degree in industrial relations and human resources
management and obtained her PhD in international and comparative education
from Columbia University in New York, United States. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been
actively engaged in the marketing and business development of the Natural
Beauty Group in Taiwan and China during the period from 2004 to 2009. Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu is involved in strategic management of the Group at Board level. Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu has been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG
KONG) COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16
May 2001 and 11 July 2008, respectively. She is currently also a director of some
of our PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

ESNSREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 68, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from National Chung-Hsing
University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic Affairs
of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions and
represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various countries
and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974
to 1979. Mr. CHEN was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information
Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. CHEN is currently the Board Chairman
of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Secretary-general
of Cross-Strait CEO Summit, a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan and
Teknowledge Development Corporation in Taiwan, and the Board Chairman
and Chief Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology Corporation (stock
code: 5346), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also a director
of HannStar Board Corporation (stock code: 5469), Asia Cement Corporation
(stock code: 1102) and GINTECH ENERGY CORPORATION (stock code: 3514); a
managing director and independent director of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre
Corporation (stock code: 1326); an independent director of China Petrochemical
Development Corporation, Ltd. (stock code: 1314) and INVENTEC CORPORATION
(stock code: 2356), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June
2017 until 10 June 2014, he was an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech.
Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 3452), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was
appointed as the Group'’s Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February
2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of both
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LU CHI-CHANT

Aged 65, is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle Nice
(International) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 02368), and an independent director of K Laser
Technology Inc. (stock code: 2461), Li Peng Enterprise Co, Ltd. (stock code:
1447) and LEALEA ENTERPRISE CO,, LTD (stock code: 1444), all listed on the stock
exchange of Taiwan. He is also an independent director of Nyquest Technology
Co, Ltd, a company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market (stock code:
6494). From 2012 to 2013, Mr. LU was an independent director of First Sino Bank,
a licensed bank established in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. LU obtained
a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from National Taiwan University
in 1974 and passed the professional qualification examinations in Taiwan for
certified public accountant in 1983 and for securities investment analyst in 1988.
During the period from 1976 to 1984, Mr. LU worked as a mechanical engineer
in Formosa Plastics Corporation, a company established in Taiwan which is
principally engaged in the manufacturing of plastic raw materials and products.
Mr. LU joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984 and he became
a partner there in 1986. Mr. LU left Deloitte & Touche Taiwan in 2011. He was
appointed as the Group's Independent Non-Executive Director on 18 December
2015. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of
both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. HSIEH PANG-CHANG (ALIAS SHIA BEN-CHANG)

Aged 54, obtained his Ph.D degree in Biological Statistics from Department of
Agronomy of the National Taiwan University. He holds various positions in the Taipei
Medical University, including the dean of the College of Management, a director of
Big Data Research Center and a professor of Executive Master Program of Business
Administration in Biotechnology (EMBA) of the College of Management. He is also
the president of Chunghwa Market Research Society and the honorary president
of ChungHwa Data Mining Society. Mr. HSIEH is currently an independent director
of Sirtec International Co, Ltd. (stock code: 5356), a company listed on the Taiwan
GreTai Securities Market. He was a director of Waterland Financial Holding Co, Ltd.
(stock code: 2889) and International Bills Finance Corporation (stock code: 5840),
both listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He was also a director of Waterland
Securities Investment Consulting Co, Ltd. and CyberSoft Digital Services Corporation,
an Information Technology company established in Taiwan. During the period
from 1991 to 2015, Mr. HSIEH worked as an associate professor of Department of
Business Mathematics of Soochow University, a professor of The Institute of Biological
Statistics of National Taiwan University, the Chairman of Department of Statistics of
Fu Jen Catholic University, a director of Institute of Business Administration of Fu Jen
Catholic University and an editor of DIGITIMES Inc, respectively. He was appointed
as the Group’s Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2016. He is also
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MR. HSIAO WEN-CHUNG (ALIAS MARK SHAW)

Aged 59, joined the Group on 16 October 2006 as the Chief Operating Officer
of Taiwan and other markets. He was subsequently re-designated as the
Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 15 April 2009 and was
responsible for consolidating and expanding the Group's operations until 9
February 2010. Mr. HSIAO was appointed as Chief Operating Officer and Interim
Chief Executive Officer of the Group with effect from 21 December 2015 and
1 January 2016 respectively and was subsequently re-designated as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group and ceased to be the Chief Operating Officer
with effect from 1 September 2016. Mr. HSIAO graduated from the Department
of Journalism of Chinese Culture University in 1981. Prior to joining the Group
in October 2006, Mr. HSIAO has over 23 years of operational management
experience in the consumer goods industry. He was the National Key Account
Manager of Tait & Co,, the National Sales Director of Unilever Taiwan, the Sales
and Marketing Director, Greater China of Warner-Lambert and Energizer Schick
Taiwan Limited, leading the sales team of the company operating globally in
the broad categories of household and personal care products. From November
2014 to November 2015, Mr. HSIAO was the Executive Vice President of Panion &
BF Biotech Inc,, Taiwan (Stock Code: 1760).
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
MR. TSAI TIEN-CHUN
Aged 47, joined the Group on 1 July 2016 as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr. TSAI graduated from National Taiwan University with a Master degree
in Accounting in 1995 and graduated from Guanghua School of Management
of Peking University with a Master degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He is currently a PhD student in Accounting at Xiamen University. He obtained
certificate of Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in Taiwan in 1995 and qualified
as a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) Charterholder in 2004. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. TSAI worked for Ta-Yung Shin Yeh Co. Ltd. and Yulon Motor
Co. Ltd. with practical experience of more than twenty years; the former is
the biggest private land management company in Taiwan, while the latter
is the biggest automotive group in Taiwan. While serving as Senior Manager
of Strategy & Planning Department of Ta-Yung Shin Yeh Co. Ltd.,, Mr. TSAI
devoted to optimizing land utilization through investment management in
organic agriculture, hotel management, leisure farm exploitation, kindergarten,
department store, supermarket and etc. In Yulon Motor Co. Ltd., he was
responsible for tax, treasury, accounting, cost management and external
negotiations, and he successfully consolidated almost a hundred subsidiaries
into an automotive management center through investment management. After
that, Mr. TSAI worked for Luxgen (Hangzhou) Motor Co. Ltd. as Administrative
Director with extensive management experience in the People’s Republic of
China.

GROUP OPERATION VICE PRESIDENT:

MR. WANG KUANG JUI

Aged 49, is in full charge of operational management of the Company. Mr.
WANG graduated from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan with a Bachelor
degree of Mass Communication. Prior to joining the Group in 2006, Mr. WANG
held senior positions in Dragon Logistics Co,, Ltd and Trust-Mart Hypermarket. He
was also a senior executive and the chief information officer of Amigo Logjistics
Corporation in Taiwan.

GROUP CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER:

MS. WU CHIN HSIN

Aged 54, joined the Group in 1981. Ms. WU used to serve as the training director
and self-owned spa manager in Taiwan. She was the training director of PRC
from 2003 to 2010. Starting from April 2013, she was appointed as the Group
Chief Education Officer and in charge of the direction and training of PRC NB
franchising stores, and she manages self-owned spa and training center in
Shanghai. She also works with R&D team in the development of new products.
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FRANCHISING DEPARTMENT GENERAL MANAGER:

MR. LIANG CHUN-HUNG

Aged 58, joined the Group in June 1999. Mr. LIANG is in charge of marketing
and sales in Taiwan. He was subsequently re-designated as Operation Director of
the Greater China starting from February 2002 and was responsible for counters
and distributor channels, until February 2010. Mr. LIANG graduated from
Tunghai University with a bachelor degree in business management in 1985.
Prior to joining the Group in June 1999, Mr. LIANG has 14 years of operational
management experience in the consumer goods industry. He had worked in
NIVEA, Elizabeth Arden, YSL and FLORIS and took charge of marketing and overall
planning. From May 2010 to December 2015, Mr. LIANG was the Chief Executive
Officer of ESENS International Group.

GROUP ADMINISTRATION VICE PRESIDENT:
MS. CHEN HWA LIEN

Aged 68, joined the Group in 1993 as the vice general manager of PRC
headquarters and was in charge of the administration, logistics and human
resources of the Group's PRC operation until February 2010. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. CHEN had over 10 years of regional operational management
experience in Taiwan. She was one of the key employees for the Group's
expansion in the PRC. Starting from January 2016, Ms. CHEN serves as the Group

Chief Controller and is in charge of internal control and risk management.

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. HO SIU PIK

Ms. HO is a director of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”),
a global professional services provider specializing in integrated Business,
Corporate and Investor Services. Ms. HO has over 20 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial field and has been providing professional corporate services
to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational, private and offshore
companies. Ms. HO is a Chartered Secretary and a Fellow of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries ("HKICS”) and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators (ICSA”) in the United Kingdom. Ms. HO is a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS. (Note: The Company has engaged
Tricor as external service provider and appointed Ms. HO as the Company’s
company secretary since 11 December 2013.)
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products and health supplements and make-up
products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016
(including an analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
key performance indicators and a discussion of the Group's future business
development) is set out in the Chairman’s Statement in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year 2016.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance,
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with Employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no material and significant
disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient usage of
resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives include the
recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had not been subject to any fines or
other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or environmental
regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for the
year 2016.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 82.

An interim dividend of HKS$0.041 per share (2015: interim dividend of
HKS$0.0392) and a special interim dividend of HK$0.025 per share, amounting to
approximately HK$82,086,138 and HK$50,052,523 respectively, were paid to the
shareholders during the year. At the Board meeting held on 28 March 2017, the
Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0327 per share
(2016: final dividend of HK$0.0292) and a special final dividend of HK$0.025 per
share to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members on 6 June 2017, amounting to approximately HK$65,468,700
and HK$50,052,523 respectively. The proposed final dividend and special final
dividend are subject to approval by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 25 May 2017. Details of the dividends

are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed on the following dates:
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RIZIE B

Friday, 19 May 2017 to
Thursday, 25 May 2017
“T—+FRATIE (BEHR)
E-T—+FRA=+FHA (BHM) Vg FREZRREF )
Monday, 5 June 2017 to
Tuesday, 6 June 2017
—T—+FX"ARH (2H-)
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entitled to the final dividend

During and including the book closure periods described in the table above, no
transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2017 Annual General Meeting
or to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the final lodging dates mentioned in the
table above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers were less than 12% of the Group's total
turnover and purchases for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2016 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, amounted to
HK$532,000.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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To determine the identity of members who are
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on pages 171 and 172 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were:
Executive Directors:

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-Executive Director:

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (alias Mr. SHIA Ben-Chang) (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s articles of association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company's Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu and Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long shall retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). The Company considers

all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and

withdraw if appropriate.

CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

The Chairperson and Vice Chairman of the Board and the members of each
of the committees of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:
Chairperson and Vice Chairman

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES (Continued)

Members of Audit Committee:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)

Members of Remuneration Committee:

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman)

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)

Members of Executive Committee:

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Chairman)

Dr. TSAl'Yen-Yu

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)

Members of Nomination Committee:

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Chairman) (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD

COMMITTEES (Continued)

The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well
as the Chairperson and Vice Chairman of the Company as of date of this report

are set out below:
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Board Committees
EExgL8g

Audit Remuneration

Executive  Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors R BZZE® ¥FNEEE WNLEE REZEE
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board) B EIELT - - M M
(BEEExR)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board) ~ ZRREE A4 - - C M
(ZEFEEER)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng EREHIE T - M M -
Non-Executive Director EHITES
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu =i M M M -
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRImIE S C M - M
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EEELE M C - M
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang HFELE M M - C
Notes: BifsE -
C Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C EREFESEEENERE
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEFESZEENNKE

BAREMRRABRLAT —F—REER
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$48,138,000 which represents the share premium and retained profits of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors'service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Directors) and
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director) expired on 31 December 2014 and were
renewed with the same terms for another three years from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017 with an initial annual remuneration of HK$1,000,000, nominal
HK$1, HK$ 1,250,000 and HK$ 1,250,000, respectively.

The Director’s service contract entered into between the Company and the
Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. LU Chi-Chant expired on 17 December
2016 and was renewed with the same terms for another one year from 18
December 2016 to 17 December 2017.

The Director’s service contracts entered into between the Company and
each of Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang, the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, expired on 31 January 2017 and were renewed with
the same terms for another one year from 1 February 2017 to 31 January 2018.

These service contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the other
party one to three calendar months’ notice in writing.
The Director’s service contract entered into between the Company and the

Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing expired on 31 January
2016 and was not renewed following his resignation on 1 February 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts for the year ended

31 December 2016 are summarised as follows:
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Annual
Director fee

Annual increment

(HK dollars)  on Director fee Discretionary
Directortype FHEZHRE FHED bonus
Name of Director BEEHA E=487 (B) FEEE [f=praAs
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu S EE L ED 1,000000 Note (a)fffzF(@@  Note (b)FizF(b)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta TRRESE ED 1 Note (@)Fff3E@)  Note (b)KiFE(b)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng Faaiet FD 1250000 Note (@)Mf3¥@  Note (b)Miz(b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu B miE T NED 1,250,000 Note (@)Mf7¥(@  Note (b)FizE(b)
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long RRImE S INED 240,000 N/ATNEF N/ATNiE R
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Note (c)) Ik E (fiFEC©)  INED 20,000 N/ATNEA N/ATNE
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EEEE St INED 240,000  N/ATEF N/AT3E A
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Note (d)) ~ #IFBE 74 (BIFEW)  INED 220000 N/ATNE N/ATNiE R
Total et 4,220,001
ED: Executive Director ED: #1TESE

NED: N

on-Executive Director

INED: Independent Non-Executive Director

Notes:

(@)

(0)

The annual increment of the Directors' fee for Executive Director and Non-Executive
Director shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Director may receive a bonus approved by
and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Director shall not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that
financial year of the Group.

Resigned on 1 February 2016.

Appointed on 1 February 2016.

NED : JESTTEE
INED : BN FEHITES

GEE

(a)

(b)

(0
(d)

BITESRIIFPTESCEFTHNST TR
TEBBE—F2FEHME10% -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

No Director bonus was proposed nor paid for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than the service contracts disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Service Contracts” above or employment contracts, concerning the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year 2016.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges,
expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the
execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the
Group.

Remuneration of Senior Management
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

BEERESH @
REE_ZE—RHFR-_ZT—R"F+_A=+—
AIEFE @ AARWERERRN I NEME
EIEA -

B EXIEEESN - AEEY EAEEF] A
AR —F AR HE (—BEEFERI)
TR IEZ REWREEL -

BEEEEN

RZE—RFERN BLELXTEZREAL]
—BARBENREE O MERAAIN - AAF]
MBS RERER HERITRAER
ARREBEMNERBONAL - TEEHES
MIFHE -

EEFHREE
REARPABERARNRTE - ARFEH
EEEARESRARANEEETHENRE
I TRIS SR B A B B A 5 H A RE R X =X
BRZFAERAN - B X - BRIERE
£

RRFEAAEE 2 & F 0] L B A FFrAR
EXMEENHERNERBEERR -

BREE AN HMH
HE-_Z-—RFT+_A=1T—RHILFE =&
EEABRGTMEES DOFINEIIAT

HrEfes =l

Remuneration bands

Number of members of senior management

SREEABAE

Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000

= — 1,000,000/ 7T
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T

Total FEE
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors, the chief executives and

their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the

Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporation
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Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital

of the Company
Number of IfewiN/NG|
Director Company Nature of interest ordinary shares BT
Bx yNC] HEE Epelieses BMOBED L
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu® The Company Interest of controlled companies 1,466,386,559 73.24%
KB LO RN RSN EIERS
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta®? The Company Interest of spouse 1,466,386,559 73.24%
FHRESR ALY ZAY/NC] foiBtEm
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Director Associated corporation Nature of interest shares  shareholding interest
% TR A E HEmME BIVEEB  (HRESOBES L
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 20,000 40%
B EIE L BREBA
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta Next Focus Holdings Limited Interest of spouse 20,000 40%
FEESE AoiBiEs
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 15,000 30%
gL BEREAA
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 15,000 30%
BBiE L EnEAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

and its associated corporation (Continued)
Notes:

m Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in turn,
indirectly owns 100% of Standard Cosmos Limited, Next Focus Holdings Limited is
therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the
SFO. As such, interest of the 1,466,386,559 shares of the Company owned by Next
Focus Holdings Limited were attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 1,466,386,559 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

Details of the interests of Directors and chief executives in the derivatives
interests in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 are disclosed
in the Share Options which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executives nor
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31 December 2016.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 201
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company's

1, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the

shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants' contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option was granted under
the share option scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the following
shareholders other than the Directors of the Company had notified the
Company of their relevant interests in the issued capital of the Company.

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

EFERR

R-T—AF+=A=+—8  BEARARE
BHERHEHEIEDBFTFECEERTER
AR A TRR (ARAEER)) ENE
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Approximate

percentage
Number of of the issued
ordinary shares share capital

beneficially held of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest BEmEE (AR RRIEBT

TEREME BB MizE EmME TRERHEE  RAEHNBEOL

Efficient Market Investments Limited Beneficial owner 838,530,000(L) 41.88%
ERBEEA

Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ERBEAA

Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ERBEAA

Starsign International Limited T Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
S A T

Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner/Interest of 1,466,386,559(L) 73.24%

controlled companies

BERlAAN ZER AR RS

(L): Long position
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

m Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,
the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

) Next Focus Holdings Limited directly held 152,356,559 shares of the Company and
directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000
shares of the Company in which Starsign International Limited was interested were
attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

On 8 December 2016, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered into
between B A £ MBI D B R A & (Natural Beauty Bio-Technology
Company Limited) (“Taiwan NB”"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, an Executive Director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, as landlord in relation to the lease of
certain premises in Taipei, Taiwan which has been used as the headquarters
and training and spa centre of the Group in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of
two years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018, with monthly rental of
TW$2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$548,112.1) to extend the term
of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject matter; and (b) the Pa-
Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into between Taiwan NB as tenant and
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, an Executive Director, as landlord in relation to the lease of
certain premises in Pa-Der Road, Taipei, Taiwan which has been used as a spa
centre of the Group, in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of two years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2018 with a monthly rental of TW$75,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$18,270.4) to extend the term of the previous tenancy
agreement of the same subject matter.

Details of the above-mentioned tenancy agreements were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2014 and 8 December 2016.
Unless otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the exchange rate used in the
above tenancy agreements is HK$1.00 to TW$4.105.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions of
the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the
transactions are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third parties
and were negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm’s length basis
and on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)
The board of Directors confirmed that the Group’s auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2016 or at any time during such year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the
board of directors (the “Board”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorised by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

TSAI Yen-Yu
Chairperson
Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 82 to 170, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

BFARET SR

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of ~ FASREFEIZEIHERBREMPINBEHE - H—-F
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the —"E+-A=+—HBREZZBILFEEE
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of HIEHMEM BT ZAEEMEIE - ELEAE
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion ~ ERMBZEEEEHKHRER L EE R EE

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. TR - KM T2 ELERREEENE
El o
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRgEITEE

Valuation of allowance for inventories

FEEERE

We identified the valuation of allowance for inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significant management estimate
involved in the net realizable value and the significant impact
on the financial statements.

ERFERERE R FEMSRNENTEER
SAREPBHRRAGEATE - AR MG ZEEHER
RERETEIR -

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group inventories mainly include raw
materials and finished goods. As at 31 December 2016, the
allowance for obsolete inventories of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$9,957,000.

PR A SRR 18I HE  SEEBEFEETERRE
EMEEERG - R-TE—A"F+-_A=1+—H8 &%
B PR EF BB 459,957,000/ 7T °

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for obsolete inventories or slow-moving
inventories that are no longer suitable for use in production
or trading. Management estimates the net realizable value
for such items with reference to the recent selling prices,
subsequent sales and market conditions.
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HEEFPHRAREFSENEES R

Our procedures in relation to valuation of allowance for inventories
included.

BT E T ERERENRTRF 2

e (Obtaining an understanding of management controls over the
identification of obsolete inventories and the assessment of
their net realizable value;

. BRERERHDIREFSRTEEARRFEL B
%

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of the methods and estimation
used in net realizable value of inventories;

o EMEERERFEMERNDERGEZAEN

e Involving our internal IT specialist in testing the inventory aging
reports generated by the application system and checking
to the supporting documents for its accuracy, on a sample
basis;

o ZABMOAMERAMKRERARERERAEENTE
ElE - WREERE AR T B FRAXT

e Performing physical observation of the Group’s physical
inventory, inspecting the Group’s facilities to identify any
deficiency of the count process and observing the inventories
position to identify any indicator of impairment.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HBREESNEE

Revenue Recognition on Product Sales
Edn $5 B AR AT A
We identified the revenue recognition on product sales as a key

audit matter due to the significant impact on financial statements.

BREmEEEERMAHMBRRABEATE - At
IRz = HRR SRR TR F1R -

Product sales are the Group’s key revenue source and primarily
come from franchised spas, self-owned spas and concessionary

counters at department stores, while terms of trade would vary.

EmEERESRBETERANER - BX2RE MEKES
D BEREKETOLRBEELREE P ESIRKATRE
BERBMTR e

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognised total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$475,225,000 in 2016, in which product sales amounted to
approximately HK$469,894,000, or 98.9% of the Group's total

revenue.

i
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U AL F4752250008 70 » ER T NF7ERBEER
2 #7469,894,000/8 7T (UG EEE 4 U A 98.9%) °
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FARFZEE (9)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEFFPHRAREFSENEEIE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on product
sales included:

BT HRA RO E T 21

e (Obtaining the sales contracts, on a sample basis, and
reviewing the key terms of trade to assess if the revenue
recognition policy is in compliance with the relevant
accounting standard;

o UEEHAREBESOLBHTEBHER AT
R AR R TG A R R TRE

e (Checking to inventories and sales records subsequent
to the year end for any significant sales returns occurred
after balance sheet date;

s RMBEBRERAMBMRAPRNGFEREERLE  UERX
FEREHREERAEMNERNKHERS

e Checking to the supporting documents on a sample
basis before and after the balance sheet date to
ensure that revenue was properly recognised in the
appropriate period.

o UHMBEHAMEBEERAMGBRK A AR AE LA
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit itor Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmE Nk EMEEIER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_T-—X"FT_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt e FET THT
Revenue WA 5 475,225 506913
Cost of sales HEMA (122,366) (109,419)
Gross profit E7 352,859 397,494
Other income and other gains E S AFE 7 36,426 28,309
Distribution and selling expenses DIERHEER (113,142) (159,661)
Administrative expenses TERAX (73,420) (87,154)
Other expenses and other losses HAbFAZFER (6,506) (8,596)
Profit before tax AL BT R A 196,217 170,392
Income tax expense FriSFif 8 (47,814) (335562)
Profit for the year AT 9 148,403 136,830
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hin2mEUE (BIR) !
Item that will not be reclassified to TEREHMHEE
profit or loss: BaRR AR -
Remeasurement of defined benefit TEREFRRSFE
pension plan ZEHET=E 23 715 (347)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HgneewEmoEE
profit or loss: Bmk7EE ¢
Exchange differences arising on translation B EAE 7 [ K AR (36,473) (44,786)
Total comprehensive income for the year ANEEL2EWZEBEZE 112,645 91,697
Profit for the year attributable to: IATATEERFERF
Owners of the Company PiN/NCIEZ Z =N 148,403 136,830
Total comprehensive income for the year L‘/{T/\iﬁgfﬁ$$ﬁ§*
attributable to: 2EW B
Owners of the Company ViN/N T%&ﬁ/\ 112,645 91,697
Earnings per share B2 12
Basic and diluted EARNEE HK7.4 cents HK6.8 cents
7.4784 6.8/l

82 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2016




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BT AR R #HRax

n\/-_r\
At 31 December 2016
R_F—7"Fr=H=%+—8
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B THERT TFHT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties WA 14 7,196 6,524
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 15 173,542 187,351
Prepaid lease payments B AT ER 16 48,296 53,796
Goodwill [ 17 25,510 27,046
Pledged bank deposits ERRITIFR 20 1,706 3,662
Deferred tax assets RLEFIEE E 26 - 608
256,250 278,987
Current assets TRED ﬁE
Inventories =& 18 49,842 46,905
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E A R ER TR 19 84,628 54,046
Prepaid lease payments BT ER 16 1,127 447
Pledged bank deposits EERITIERK 20 1,706 5,491
Bank balances and cash RITEFRER 20 428,633 502,721
565,936 609,610
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENERK 21 132,198 117,484
Deferred income REW 22 6,223 6,593
Tax payable FERHIE 24,305 19,560
162,726 143,637
Net current assets REBEEFE 403,210 465,973
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBEE 659,460 744,960
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferral tax liabilities REFHIEAE 26 686 =
Retirement benefit obligations RINEFEE 23 4,101 12,332
654,673 732,628
Capital and reserves HQZF&T%{%
Share capital ke 24 200,210 200,210
Reserves ] 454,463 532418
Total equity AR 654,673 732,628

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 170 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu

EEEEL
DIRECTOR

EBEF

FEREEFII0BEMEREMBRERZ

T+

FoA-T\BERESSHELRETIZ - I
BIATRERZRE

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
FHERE

DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MF

SEEBED

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—

NE+TZA=+—BIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARME AR
Share
Share Capital Share  Statutory Translation option  Retained
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
fx  BABRS RORE EERE EXRE IRERE REREN @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TExr TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZ-RE—A—-A%%E 200210 42554 41,016 163490 127,028 1,775 197833 773906
Profit for the year REE G| - - - - - - 136830 136830
Other comprehensive expense REEEMEARMY
for the year - - - - (44,786) - (347) (45133)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AEFE2HE (FxX) Wl
for the year - - - - (44,786) - 136483 91,697
Recognition of equity-settled share BRREREERNER
based payment - - - - - 9334 - 9334
Dividends recognised as distribution REDRZIE (FiFF3)
(note 13) - - - - - - (142309) (142309
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
+-R=1t—H&# 200210 42554 41,016 163490 82,242 11,109 192007 732628
Profit for the year REE G| - - - - - - 148403 148403
Other comprehensive (expense) income  AFEEE M2 (F%) iz
for the year - - - - (36473) - 715 (35758)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AFE2HE (X ) WamEE
for the year - - - - (36473) - 149118 112,645
Dividends recognised as distribution REDELRE (FzE3)
(note 13) = = = = = = (190,600) (190600)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—rF
TZA=t—-R&& 20210 454 41006 163490 45769 11109 150525 654673
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon the reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to transfer a
certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under PRC accounting
regulations (the net profit under PRC generally accepted accounting principles
(“PRC GAAP"), to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund.
Distribution of these reserves shall be made in accordance with the Article
of Association and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of their net profit under
PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as cash
dividends.

CARREDR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_ T A"FTTA=T—HILFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash+Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES reTEy
Profit before tax MRFH R A 196,217 170,392
Adjustments for: KFEE TSI EIE
Interest income FLEM = (6,187) (11,721)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMEMREITE 22,440 33,832
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWZE - HEME&E 2 EE 1,776 7,343
Receipt of comparison income arising from IWER R AR IE TR E ek A= A A
termination of a tenancy agreement mERKE (19,094) -
Release of prepaid lease payments B 5Bt EER 1,180 461
Increase in fair value of investment properties B WMERNFEIE N (532) (836)
Allowance for obsolete inventories [REFERE 327 4417
Expense of share based payment expense SRR - 9,334
(Reversal of) allowance on trade receivables (BE) &5 EUARF A (414) 4,582
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ~ &E &SR 2 K LW LR E 195,713 217,804
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,264) (6,286)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMERRRRIE M Ofid) 14,714 (35,830)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B S5 REMEWEER (3Zn) Hd (29,870) 9,119
Decrease in deferred income EIEU 2 Rk (370) (984)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations RINEFEERD (7,812) (154)
Cash generated from operations IR TREE L 7 IH S 169,111 183,669
Income taxes paid B FTEHIE (41,159) (43,585)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHREREFR 127,952 140,084
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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BERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
NE+ZA=+—BILEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—FhF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT THT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BERXE (19,030) (14,403)
Purchase of land use right EE AR - (46,439)
Interest received 24 F B 6,187 11,721
Returned of deposits on acquisition for land use right REIEE T {ERERS - 12,219
Receipt of compensation income arising from WER AR IR S i = R
termination of a tenancy agreement mERzE 19,094 -
Release (placement) of pledged bank deposits R (TEA) IIRERITIERK 5,491 (9,153)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  REFEFE (FrA) BEFE 11,742 (46,055)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEETARERE
Dividends paid 2RI B (190,600) (142,309)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReERASEZEYWRD (50,906) (48,280)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY N—A—BZzHRERBEZEEY 502,721 583,283
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ExgHooE (23,182) (32,282)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+=—A=+—H2
RERBLEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BIRITHEFELES 428,633 502,721
BAEEYREBRAR ZT—XRFF®R g7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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General

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 28 March 2002. Its parent and ultimate holding company are
Standard Cosmos Limited and Next Focus Holding Limited, respectively,
and both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-up
products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services,
skin care consulting and beauty training. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year.

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) for the

first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in
Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014

Cycle

AN
%/T\IZI

B 5 R R I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The Group has applied the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle for the first time in the current year which include a number of
amendments to various HKFRSs as summarised below.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used to discount
post-employment benefit obligations should be determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds. The assessment of the depth of a market for high qualify
corporate bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the same currency
as the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for which there is no deep
market in such high quality corporate bonds, the market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds denominated in the
currency should be used instead.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments '

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKAS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRSs

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1

January 2018, as appropriate
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong

92

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which is relevant to the Group is:

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9
in the future may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
Ccost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarification to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported (e.g. fee on
placing and recognition of rebates, sales return) as the timing of revenue
recognition may be affected, and more disclosures relating to revenue is
required. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the directors of the Company performs a
detailed review. In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may
result in more disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company consider that the performance obligations
are similar to the current identification of separate revenue components
under HKAS 18, however, the allocation of total consideration to
the respective performance obligations will be based on relative fair
values which will potentially affect the timing and amounts of revenue
recognition. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the directors of the Company performs a
detailed review. In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may
result in more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing and cash
flows respectively.
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosure are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$43,967,000 as disclosed in note 27. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of
a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognize a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS
16. In addition, the application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors of the Company complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the remaining new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocate first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebate and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Service income including that from operating service provided under
service concession arrangements is recognised when services are

provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments”in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of

the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well

as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.

104  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

FESHBE @)

BF®ES

A A B R BANE B IS 7T A B R B
S FTHT S 2 I RS SIS AL AT - A
=B TS RABFHS -

AEBKATREBUERFAX KD ELEER
ZHEZBFMEE kAT IRMHAE
B TS BY T AR B B 0 & B 2 AR R A AR
ZBFfE - NER T WEEEAER
mRPHER ©

3R K48 I B A I 48 LE BR 7548 7

AR B AT EEL Z R B
REEREM<SEEERFA HREE
RBRFAX °

o

A

BEBRBMEBARFTEMS - BEEMZ
AT IR AT B AR N RAREEE -
YREEFERESHHEERELEE
fafE -

ERBMEADRIT

RAERA (BB RIIRBKA - 1B
TEBRTE AR A LA B Rk N 4 8 2 W gk

REH)
MRS R
SEHEHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits (Continued)
The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss in the line item employee benefits expense. Curtailment
gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. Past service cost
is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits (Continued)
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS

requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the ‘profit before tax" as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
(classified as finance lease) and freehold land held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than properties under construction less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

FESTTHE 8

BEYE

BBy ATRIAS R HA A
A2 Y -

REVENIRAATE  BRERE
EMFX mmiﬁwé'&ﬁ%%ﬁ
HRAVERE - AREMEKEHEE

Tﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%%
BETERBEMENBAR - LHEHA
RNPERAGE - REVEQFEES
FELZ&E  RNEBE ABER -

EEREMENEERABERMCAERE
BREYRKREERN D °

RIREYELESKAE LEARTES
TEaRtLEZMEDESRRLBE RS
B REVMESRIEHER - RILER
FELEMAEE (RHEMERIRF
REZEEREBECEZHTE) ROE

UETER 2 BT Al A ©

BEUNEFREERERSE
RmEHEEEE  AEEeFRA{E
AFHERNEREECKREME UE
ERSHREMNTRERZEEELT
R ERE - WEEEMZETR - A
Afﬁ?r’éfﬁz—}%@@%é VATE TE B
EiE (E) BE - g A GFrEREE
MR EISRE  NEBebEZEEM
BIRSCELSEMNMAIKEIESEE - & AU
BEAEN—BHNOEER  AREE
MOEEEMERCEESEN ; E 0]
AHEEN—EN AR LS RER
NAIR G EAEN o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than goodwiill
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then the
other asset on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
assets in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to
the other assets of the unit, An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans, pledged bank deposits and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets other than available-for-sale, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
terms of the customers, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of goodwill is HK$25,510,000 (2015: HK$27,046,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are set out in note 17.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstance, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$72,972,000 (2015:
HK$41,210,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,476,000
(2015: HK$6,753,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production or trading. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices,
sales after year end and current market conditions. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of inventories net of allowance for inventory of
HK$9,957,000 (2015: HK$13,270,000) amounted to HK$49,842,000 (2015:
HK$46,905,000).

Revenue

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i) goods
sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of sales returns
and allowances and (i) service income from provision of skin treatments,

beauty and spa services for the year, and is analysed as follows:
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FEF 1 13,270,000 7T) £49,842,00078 7T

T — A : 4690500058 7T) °

A
WARAFEBERTISBRZERNE
YR (AEEETHNEEPZEMR
(NERFERE RBREIIER) MR
HUEERE - T RKERSE 2 RIS
A B

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZT—AF

HK$’000 HKS'000

THERT TET

Sales of goods Emiss 469,894 500,480
Service income RRFS YA 5,331 6433
475,225 506,913
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HESE—7 X A=+4—HIFE

6. Segment Information
HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), the Chief
Executive Officer ("CEQ") of the Company, in order to allocate resources
to the segment and to assess its performance. The CEO of the Company
reviews internal reports which focus on geographical segments by
location of customers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. This is the basis upon which the

Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)
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BHE_ZT—"F+A=+—RHLFE

Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)

Segment revenues and results DEHBMARELE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from TXARAEE 2 HELERARERR

continuing operations by reportable and operating segments. AR RACE D EBIEL 2 DT ©

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—A"F+-A=+t—HLEFE

PRC Taiwan Others Total

FRE K BE = Hith B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FERT FET FiEx FERx

Revenue LN 386,409 85,655 3,161 475,225
Segment profit (loss) DELEA (EHE) 177,969 26,461 (4,105) 220,325
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBARSZH (10,295)
Unallocated income P EEH&Z@ 6,187
Profit before tax BREL AT A 196,217
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE_Z-—hF+_A=+t—HILFE
PRC Taiwan Others Total

B R RE B Htth ks

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000

TR TR TAT TR

Revenue WA 418,524 84,987 3,402 506,913
Segment profit 3 BB Al 157,231 25,607 4,585 187,423
Expense of share based payment H%ﬁﬁ%’xi ] (9334)
Unallocated corporate expenses G AN W/NC g s (19418)
Unallocated income P ) EEH&Z@ 11,721

Profit before tax B F AT A 170,392
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RFT+_A=+—RHILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEEHR (%f'é)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBMAREE (B
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the b ‘I'BZ 553$$ E g5t
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) AR (@ W FE3ATAL) o 5 Fom A (S
represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment without B) BED RIS 2 af (FIEEZ
allocation of equity-settled share based payments, central administration E1B) r BRI RS IR A4S ER
costs, directors’ salaries and interest income. This is the measure reported MR FRITRER EFHFMEF
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance BIWA - kAT HELHERSBERKE
assessment. Segment assets and liabilities are not reported to the CODM G E E2ERRAELERE 2T
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment Ao NEEERBE I?ﬁﬁ‘dﬂéﬁ 2l h954
performance. D EPR BTG M A= EEERKAELD
e o
Other segment information Hittm BER
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
FREI KRB =) Hit FEHBE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FER FHET FET
2016 —7x
Amounts included in the measure of &K (E518) 5T A
segment profit (10ss): THIFREE :
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WE MR ETTE
equipment 18,148 4,270 22 22,440
Release of prepaid lease payments o BE Rt iHER 1,180 - - 1,180
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HER
plant and equipment ?“ﬁz;éi‘ﬁé 1,617 159 - 1,776
Compensation income arising from ISR ET
termination of a tenancy agreement EEW@EW@ (19,094) - - (19,094)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) REFERE
for obsolete inventories (B fEReE) 293 ) 36 327
Reversal of allowance on trade Z SRR E R D
receivables (414) - - (414)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

H=z—Z—

ANE+ZA=+—BILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Other segment information (Continued) Hittn BER (8)
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
baN=i958
Hp B AR =V Hth et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
2015 —T-RF
Amounts included in the measure of 7 &5 Kz A 515058
segment profit:
Depreciation of property, plant and M - R NGRIETTE
equipment 28,107 5,697 28 33,832
Release of prepaid lease payments BoaRALtihHEER 461 - - 461
Loss on disposal of property, HEWX - BEXR
plant and equipment B 5] 7,343 = = 7,343
Allowance for obsolete inventories BREFERE 3,395 973 49 4417
Allowance on trade receivables B 5 R 4,582 = = 4,582
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6. Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a range
of products including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products,
health supplements and mark-up products and (b) provision of skin
treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty
training. The analysis of the Group's revenue by type of business for the
year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets are presented based on the geographical
location of the assets as detailed below:

DEBER (@)

#4305
AEEETERFQRERNEES =
R BHER - BEASRLESES
REBER  ROIEHEERE  £5
RN B BRAS DA R LG8 IR BB R E B s
3l o AREEE R AREBERIEL 2
DN ER A A TERE IS o

NEB 7 IR BELRBEMEMIEF
BE2HT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
The PRC Hp B AR 208,470 232,020
Taiwan =0 47,740 46,904
Others Hitb 40 63
256,250 278,987

Information about major customers BREIEZFEHR

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer contributed
10% or more to the Group's revenue for both 2016 and 2015.
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Other Income and other gains

e T RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-F—AFI-A=+—RILFE

Hib Wz M A 1S

2016 2015
—E-XF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Interest on bank deposits RITFERFE 6,187 11,721
Rental income from investment properties A 2 B W 179 23
Rental income from other properties and Hab ¥z R B Wes
equipment 2,115 2,550
Financial refunds (Note 1) BESIRR (RE1) 6,498 8527
Increase in fair value of investment properties & & ¥)5 A SE(EIE AN 532 843
Reversal on tax audit accrual (note 8) s E T AR (FizEs) - 2,668
Compensation income arising from R PR E W mELER
termination of a tenancy agreement (Note 2) ~ #{E Uk 25 (F£2) 19,094 =
Others Hib 1,821 1,977
36,426 28,309
Note 1: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in 1 BEETH Kﬁiﬁ@%@a@%ﬁﬁﬁ
which certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will ED 2T BEFIFTERA 2 BB
receive financial refunds from other taxes paid in the form of government BRATEIAREM B AR AABES
grants by way of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau. However, Egﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬂ Faiﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ AT B
the refunds are subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain if these e A MM BRR - BAR
subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the RIVHEE M B BB R BT - A -
future. BN EBRRAGEEITE - dut
ReEBEEBNBARINBREESE
BETERZR LHMBBRR -
The financial refunds represent unconditional tax refunds received from PBRFIEARETRAELEER
the local government in compensation for taxes incurred and paid by the R B 0 75 BUR TS B9 S AR B UR
PRC operating entities of the Group. BAREEZEARIAHFRK
Note 2: In 2004, Shanghai Jianggiao Agriculture Development Co. Ltd.('Jiangqiao") #2: R-ZTWE - Jﬁf;*%%%ﬁ"ﬁﬁ
as lessor and the Group, as lessee entered into a lease agreement to build R~ A (DI*%J) (fEBH ﬁ/\) Eﬁi%
a spa resort in Jianggiao County, Jiading District, Shanghai. During the SH (ERABAN) R LBRTER
current period, through negotiation, both Jianggiao and the Group agreed TG R 2R — K EOE B MRl S
to terminate the agreement in advance. Meanwhile Jianggiao agreed B RAMRA IHRAE
to pay a compensation amounted to approximately RMB15,983,000 EE Bk - EHRERME LR
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,094,000) to the Group. e AR IRRERNASEX N
EEENHARE5983,0007T (HHER
#919,094,00077T) °
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Income Tax Expense 8. FBHAX
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—FhF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FAT
The charge comprises: SHBRE
Taxation in PRC AR B K BERR 1A
Current year KEE 36,542 32,024
Over provision in prior years B FEBERE (2,982) (6,499)
Withholding tax on dividends AR S FEHE 5,636 8510
39,196 34,035
Taxation in Taiwan BBHIE
Current year REE 3,321 4,900
Over provision in prior years BAEFEREREE 9) (1,697)
Withholding tax on dividends A% S FEFEL 3,621 2,120
Under provision of withholding REFEMBE AT 2
tax on dividends - 4,936
6,933 10,259
Taxation in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions  Z&78 K& H At Bl ARE R Fi 18
Current year KEE 1,426 4518
Over provision in prior years BAFEBERE (899) (2,144)
Tax refund of changing tax rate TR FAIRT - (14,368)
527 (11,994)
Deferred taxation (note 26) IRIEFRIA (FitsE26)
Current year REE 1,158 1,262
47,814 33,562
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. The statutory
withholding tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10%. As the Company has
obtained tax benefit approval from the tax bureau in 2014, which stipulate
that the withholding tax rate for Natural Beauty China Holding Limited
could be reduced to 5% for the dividend income from July 2011 to June
2017 and 7% for royalty fee from January 2012 to December 2014. Thus, in
2015, the tax authority returned the prior years' over-paid taxes accordingly
and disclosed as tax refund of changing tax rate.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Taiwan and applicable
tax treaty, dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 12.5% under
Taiwan-Malaysia tax treaty, and 20% on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by Taiwan subsidiaries that are received by non-local
resident entities. In 2015, the Taiwan tax bureau initiated a tax audit on the
Taiwan withholding tax affairs of a Taiwan subsidiary of the Group for the
years 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, and decided that dividend withholding
tax rate applies to the Group should be 20%, as the Group is not applicable
to Taiwan-Malaysia tax treaty. Accordingly, the Group recognised an under
provision of withholding tax on dividends amounting to HK$4,936,000
and other related expense amounting to HK$3,159,000 (under other
expense) in 2015.

The PRC tax bureau initiated a tax audit on the PRC tax affairs of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group for the years 2012 and 2013. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the tax bureau concluded on the tax audit for
the said years. Accordingly, the PRC subsidiary paid relevant expenses and
reversed over provision of related expense RMB2,216,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,668,000) (under other income) in 2015.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% in both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

ArE I IS Rk MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—AF+-A=t+—HILFE

Fredimx (&)
BIEFEARLNBOERERE ([H
EHEHE]D) RECERBSRH AT HIE
Bl B=ZTENF—A—BE  FEK
BEMIB AR 2R B255% - IEPBER
A ETEIMMRIER B10% - NAREZ
T FEREHE RO U ESHE ;
BAEFBREZERERAGMKREENG
MEBR-_ZT——FLABRE-_ZT—tF
NABES%  RAFFFREEA BTN
BHEH-_T——-—F-HARE_ZT—UF
TZABARTN - At EZF —AFHB
HWEREBREFEZHABRANIEE LR
KRR o

BRI B AR E R AR T LA R E R B
WE AEBNMERADZRMBEHBTE T2
[ BTEME HI125% e B A
A BRER A P 15 05 FI T = R 32 B 3 AN i
EROCEWRRZREER BB KA
20 —E—RAFEEBERERAE
BagMBAR S —=—F  —_—=
F T NER_Z-—AFELER
BIENHEBRBMREET - WHRA
& BT E R A 7 T 5 5 78 50 A B 75 1
o ERERSAEERETBMBIREZ
B20%c AR T —RF @ KNEERE
R AR B TE 0 R 4 T R 54,936,000/ TT
R E A B E B 43,159,000 7T (5 A
HAppA) o

FERREBENAEE —HHENBEL
AN E——EM—E—=—EFFA/
BB RIFERT - BHE_TE—HF+=
B=1+—RHIFE  BBEHBEEREH
MFE 2RISR - Bt - FEMB A
AR T —AFSXHHEBERIERE
78 2 B B B RE B R A R 62,216,0007T
(#)18 & 12,668,000/ JT) (7] A H b U

QZ
@) °

RERMEFEE  BEDEMSHIZ
17%ET & -

EBFERIE LM EFE 2 G ER
B 2 165%:T & o
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8. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 8.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

FEREX @
AEEHESHAGOBAREMET
ok 5 B R B AT R BRI T -

2016 2015
—E-AEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before tax KR FR AT A 196,217 170,392
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits JEEHEENEEER 2
of taxable entities in the countries MRS E AR R E
concerned (Note) A (fisE) 101,447 65,643
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ST 2 s o 2
for tax purpose 5,558 6,462
Tax effect of income not taxable B AR S 2 BT 52
for tax purpose (56,223) (24,397)
Under provision of withholding REFBHFEET B
tax on dividends - 4,936
Utilisation of tax losses previously BB RER 2 BEER
not recognised (9,408) (4,824)
Over provision in respect of prior years B FEBERE (3,890) (10,340)
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed BRETRARENEENEATZ
earnings of PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries ADIKER ZIEEFRIEEE 10,330 10,450
Tax refund of changing tax rate T R IR TR - (14,368)
Income tax expense for the year REEEHRSE 47,814 33,562

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction
have been aggregated and presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—RF+-A=1+—HLHFE

9. Profit for the Year 9. XREEGRF
2016 2015
—EB-RE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REFMEMER (FFA) T3I&IE :
charging (crediting):
Staff costs: BIRA :
Directors’emoluments (note 10) =M< (FizE10) 5,323 5,620
Other staff salaries and allowances Hb 8 T & & E8L 89,505 96,751
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, BRINERETEIHEEK -
excluding directors: TEEES
— defined contribution plans (note 23 (b)) — EREHFETE (HiE230)) 14,790 15,836
- defined benefit plan (note 23 (a)) — EREMETE (FifaE23@) 352 355
Expense of share based payment AN 5 - 9,334
Total staff costs B TN BT 109,970 127,896
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 - BE K 3R T E 22,440 33,832
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense O ER BRI 2 7 &R A 108,891 95,861
Release of prepaid lease payments o e ALt ER 1,180 461
Auditor's remuneration IZE AN < 2,999 3,381
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE kR iE 2 EE
plant and equipment 1,776 7,343
Compensation income arising for E 4% EFR & ek i 2= A RO (B U e
termination of a tenancy agreement (19,094) -
Research and development costs RS AN 2,464 3,679
Allowance for obsolete inventories, PREFERE GTABEEMRAK)
included in cost of sales 327 4417
Advertising and promotion expenses BEE MEERS 28,781 33,809
Net exchange loss (gain) i 5 EsiE (Was) #5858 3,110 3/477)
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+=—=

EERIETRAEBME
ENREANG (Z2—H%F : THER)
EFREBARARZHEMT :

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10.
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2015: fifteen)
directors and the chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—AR"F+-A=+—HLEFE

Directors
i3
Mr. Chief
Dr.SU HSIEH Total  Executive
Dr.TSAI Mr. LEE Chien- Dr.SU  MrCHEN  MrYANG Mr.LU Pang- directors’  Mr.HSIAO Total
Yen-Yu Ming-Ta Cheng  Sh-Hsyu Ruey-long  Tze-Kaing  Chi-Chant Chang emoluments  Wen-Chung 2016
TR
BT ZUE BB 0 BRF RRER  BTI 0 EHE R E3He BB st
Bt it 3 Bt Bt b3 it 3 pi%:3 i3 @5t £E ZF-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn  TER TEr TEx TEr TEn  TER  TEn  TER  TEx
(Notevi)  (Noteiv) (Note vii)
(&vi) (&) (&hvii)
Fees e 1,000 - 1,250 1,250 20 20 210 00 4220 499 479
Other emoluments e
Salries and other benefit e REMERN - 38 302 302 - - - - 932 1,806 2738
Contributions to retiement RINERET B
benefits scheme 2N 52 49 49 - - - - 171 4 218
Total emoluments e 1,021 380 1,601 1,601 2%0 20 240 00 533 235 7,675
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-T AFT-A=1+—HLFE
Directors
82
M. MsNG Mr. Mr Mr. Ms. Chief
DSy Pack ~ Shiew Ms. POON  Gregory M Frands.  Sutei Totdl  Bxecutive
DiTSAL - MilEE  Chie  DrSU  Thomas  VYeng  GONG VYeeMan  Michael CHANG GOUTEN THOMP- Mr.CHEN MiYANG — MrlU  directors  Ms.CHANG Total
YenYu  MingTa  Cheng  ShHsyu  SEWERT Chistna  Zhishi  Awin  ZEHLUCK  Hsuguo  MACHER SON Ruey-Long Tze-Kaing  Chi-Chant emoluments ~ Karen YiFen 015
GOUTEN figs
BET e B K9P MEE RAE BB OEEX ETH RME moiR REE RRE RTI BEE EEME  FEF &
Bt % [An e S Gl S oD v S D S-S G o v S - S - N e o3
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS0O0  HKSO00
Thn TEr TR TAn TEr Thr T TR i TR TEr TE TEn TR TR TEL TR TEn
(Noteil) ~ (Notel) ~ (Noteii)  (Note)  (Notei)  (Noteii)  (Note)  (Noteil (Notevi) ~ (Notei) (Notev)
Gh) (W) G G G Ga) (W) (&) (b W) (:h)
Fees e 1000 1250 1250 3 3 20 40 8 443 3675 8127
Other emoluments HfoEe
Sdaesandoherenefts  ERERER w39 % 0 s
Contrbutions toretiement — RINERIsEIELE
benefits schere B} 61 4 4 18 3 18
Fquitysettied share haEREERA
based payments e 53 539
Total emoluments Heag 1038 408 1611 1611 3 3 20 40 8 5600 909 14710
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin resigned as directors
of the Company on 11 August 2015.

(ii) Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON resigned as directors of the
Company on 18 December 2015.

(i) Ms. GONG Zhizhi and Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo was appointed as directors of the
Company on 11 August 2015, and resigned as director of the Company on
18 December 2015.

(iv)  Mr. LU Chi-Chant was appointed as director of the Company on 18
December 2015.

(v) Ms. CHANG Karen Yi Fen ceased to hold office as Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 1 January 2016.

(Vi) Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing resigned as directors of the Company on 1 February
2016.

(vii)  Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer of
the Group with effect from 1 January 2016 and was re-designated as Chief
Executive Officer of the Group with effect from 1 September 2016.

(viii)  Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a
management bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of
that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

e IR R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AF+-A=+—AILFE

10. EERFETHAEME @)
5

i) REBLLREBNEER-Z—AHF
NA+—HEEARRESE -

(i) MHEELE FEFB KL L Frands
GOUTENMACHERZE A& M AR IR 2 TR
ZE-AF+TZ A+ NABEEARRE
$ o

(i) EPBLZERFAEEER-_T-HF
NA+T—BEZERESE  RR-T—
EFE+-A+TN\BBERARRAES -

vy BEREXER-Z-—AF+-A+/\H
BLZERARAES -

v R®REZTBEZTE-—R"F-A—BED
BEETBEE -

vy BFIREB-_T—A"F_F— B
EARRRESE -

(vi) FEXEEER-T-—RF-A—HRE
ZER/RAEBERETHAR  XBE-F
—RENLA-BEREALEETRA
% o

(i) BITERRIFMTERANZHRFHIE
SRR BEETA  ARLAER
TMEBEBARENEBYBFREZAR
AR ARG EEZARS 5%

REBE-_ZT—AFK=_F— "F+=A
ZS+—BLEMEAFE  ASEHERE
EXMEAME - ERBRSIBEEMAR
EESEMARNEER Sk EARE
BAE -

TR MECAEBREFTAERTHRA
BHEXFBERETAFHFIMN L -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—RF+A=1T—HLFE

11. Employees’ Emoluments 1. EE#M<
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four rEBRARSFMNALHR Ef@E
(2015: three) were directors and the chief executive of the Company —E—RF:=ZR) BRARRESERE
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The ZITHAER  BEIMEFBERLEX
emoluments of the remaining one (2015: two) individuals were as follows: M0 TE - T —% (ZE—RF:

ME) AL zBEmT

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 1,211 2,068
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  3RKIEFIET 23k 39 24
1,250 2,092

The emoluments of the one (2015: two) individuals were within the —Z(ZE—0F : WB) oA L

following bands: ZHENFATEE :

2016 2015
—E-RE —=—hF
Headcount Headcount
AE A&
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
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g A

N b

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of HK$0.0327 per share
(2015: final dividend of HK$0.0292 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015) and a special final dividend of HK$0.025 per share
(2015: Nil), amounting to HK$65,468,700 (2015: HK$58,461,347) and
HK$50,052,523 (2015: Nil) in aggregate, respectively, have been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

BE_ T A"FTTA=T—HILFE
12. Earnings Per Share 12. SREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners RABEB AEEGREREF THIRIE
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the KRN EHEAR A B R T 49148,403,000/%
Company of approximately HK$148403,000 (2015: HK$136,830,000) and 7T (ZF—HAF 136,830,000/ 70) RF
on the number of 2,002,100,932 (2015: 2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of WA BB 31T AR 202,002,100,932%
the Company in issue during the year. (ZZ—FHF :2,002,100,932/%) 515
The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2016 and 2015 does RZZE—RERZZE—1F  SR#EE
not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the B 2t E W EEBERAD A EREET
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market price F RARZEEREZITEESNM
in both years. B E 2 FHmE -
13. Dividends 13. RE
2016 2015
—E-XF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERABDIRZIRE
during the year:
Interim dividend, paid — HK$0.0410 per share B JRfTHREAIRE — —ZF—/N4F
for 2016 (2015: HK$0.0392 per H%004108T (ZF—RF :
share for 2015) —E-hFHR00392ETT) 82,086 78,482
Special interim dividend, paid — BRI AR S — —F—R4F
HK$0.0250 per share for 2016 (2015: Nil) FR%002508TT (ZE—HF : #) 50,053 -
Final dividend, paid — HK$0.0292 per share EIRIRERE — ZF—RF
for 2015 (2015: HK$0.03188 per share FRR00292BTL (ZE—hHF :
for 2014) —ZT—NF 500318848 7T) 58,461 63,827
190,600 142,309

EREHRGEERE  EZERKNE

E-FT—RXFE+-_A=+—HILFEX
B B A%0.032787C (ZF—RHF : &
E_Z-—RAF+-_A=+—HILFEX

HIR% B & R%0.029278 7T) & BRI oK 2B A%
BHERRSET (ZE—AF: &)
5B A $£65,468,70058 7T (Z T —FH & ¢
58,461,347 JC) }50,052,523% 7T (=&
—hF ) EAFRFEREERRE
FREPEEZRTIEER -

BAEEMEHRERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HESE—7 X A=+4—HIFE

14. Investment Properties

14. REWE

HKS$'000

T
FAIR VALUE NF{E
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZ—RF—HA—H 5915
Exchange realignment PE H A (227)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit WA HER 2 A FEE 836
At 31 December 2015 R-_Z—HF+_-_A=+—H 6,524
Exchange realignment HE 5 SR B 140
Increase in fair value recognised in profit W MR 2 A AN 532
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-H=+—H 7,196

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2016 and 2015 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Euro-Asia
Real Estate Appraisers Firm are members of the Institute of Valuers, and
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
using the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence of
recent transaction prices for similar properties in the similar locations and
conditions.
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—AF+_A=+—RAZAFE " JHK
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(Institute of Valuers) @ 8 + HAFHAE
B BB ARMERUYE
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) AR S ERMEEERESEL -



Investment Properties (Continued)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated on
freehold land in Taiwan.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_ T A"FTTA=T—HILFE

14. BEWZE (&)

A=

R EME (FREEW EXFR) IR
KA o

Fair value Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy Valuation technique inputs(s) input(s) to fair value

D¥E TABRWAYE

=P TEFUBEZBARE BN EZEER

Level 3 Direct comparison method Capitalisation rate, taking into account The higher the capitalisation rate,
= and income method of the capitalisation of rental income the lower the fair value

BEERLEREEE

The key inputs are:

ETEHABER

Capitalisation rate;

Price per square metre

ST IS

potential nature of the property,
prevailing market condition

BER(ER  ZERBERTRTYEZ
BEASRREERNEARL

Monthly rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account of
age, location and individual factors such
as road frontage, size of property and
layout/design of the base level

A ERAEETSALERLZRE
Nighe LB RERNEZE - thin—2
HBHKEE MEEMBERGD,RE

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparable and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property, etc. of the base level
BYHORER  EREETSAILE
BRI EENRUEREMEREZSE - Lt
W—EHERRIRE - WMEEES

BERfexfs - A HEBE

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value

AMEE  AFEES

The higher the price per square
metre, the higher the fair value

SFHAEELE - AFELD
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE=Z—

NETZA=+—HILEE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

134

15. ¥% - BERRE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Motor fixturesand  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
KAKHE Ba-
1 BT HENERE HERES RE  KERRE W EEIR At
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TR TER TER TER TER TEr TR
cosT AR
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%
—A—-H 16016 187,382 53841 50811 2858 9,785 10938 418631
Exchange realignment (B3 3% 2370 (25436) (1927) 3434 19 4569 23) (17104
Additions BN - 1,045 2891 629 - 49% 4847 14403
Disposals e = = (12807) (277) (10) (41,958) (379) (55431)
Transfer i = 11576 8,829 (14327) = - (6078) -
At31December2015  R-E-TE
+=-A=1+-H 18386 174,567 50827 40270 2967 64392 9090 360,499
Bichange realignment X 358 (2474 (7,344) (1277) (2418) (26) (2851) (400 (1679)
Additions R - 4514 5732 1,744 180 2970 3890 19,030
Disposals HE = - (767) (330) (742) (1,667) (1,235) (4747)
Transfer b = = 1,149 624 = 5809 (7.582) =
At31 December 2016 MZZ—AF
+-A=1-H 15912 171,737 55664 39,884 2379 68,653 3,763 357,992
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2015 RZE-h%
+=A=+-H = 61,358 33318 29,803 989 69455 = 194923
Exchange realignment [ 3 35 - (2172) (2828) (1,889) (61) (569) - (7519)
Provided for the year EREE - 3,166 10293 5933 397 14043 - 33832
Eliminated on disposals A ER IS = - (11,303) (230) (10) (36,545) - (48089
Transfer ] - 3410 8,829 (12239 - - - -
At31December 2015 W-E-R%
+-R=t-H = 65,762 38309 21378 1315 46,384 - 173,148
Exchange realignment [ 3% = (3761) (1.271) (1.275) 2) (1838) - (8167)
Provided for the year EREE = 5323 6011 3225 337 7,544 = 22440
Eliminated on disposals 1 E R 8 - - (741) (318) (521) (1391) - Qan)
At31 December 2016 MZE—AF
+-R=+-H = 67,324 42308 23010 1,109 50,699 - 184450
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31December 2016  MZE—F
+=R=+-H 15912 104413 13356 16,874 1270 17954 3,763 173542
At31December2015  R-E-TE
TZA=1+-AH 18386 108805 12518 18892 1652 18,008 909 187351
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solidated Financial Statements
e B RS SR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—FAF+A=+—RHL&FE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. 1% - BERRZRE (@)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than L BMERRHERE (IR
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the BRON) IMESERERBUTNFERFE :

following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil KAFERET I i
Buildings 40 years gF 40%F
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period HEMEEE RIE WA EF S EF
of the lease and estimated useful A 7 A & Hi3ZE104F
life of 3 to 10 years (A& B%E)
Machinery 510 years TR e M 2% 5—10%F
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years P2l 3—5%F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years FE - KERHZME 2—15F
16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. BT #EER
2016 2015
—B-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FHT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise 2@ 7 B A - E R B HE
leasehold land rights in the PRC under FAFR B A BEAR $5R AR B -3 5 R 4
medium-term land use rights BHZHEE T AE 49,423 54,243
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TSRO ¢
Non-current asset ERBEE 48,296 53,796
Current asset BB E 1,127 447
49,423 54,243
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e VSRR MR

7 ==

For the year ended 31 December 2016
A ey H = FR R

17. Goodwill 17. B8

HK$'000

T
COST D%
At 1 January 2015 R-_Z—RF—H—H 31464
Exchange realignment b 5 B (1,226)
At 31 December 2015 R-TE—AF+-_A=1+—H 30,238
Exchange realignment B 5, B (1,536)
At 31 December 2016 N-_E—NE+=-_A=+—H 28,702
IMPAIRMENT BB
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R-_ZE—RF—HF—H -

31 December 2016 —E—RFt+-A=+—HK
—E—XF+-A=+—H 3,192

CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2016 N-E—RF+=-_A=1+—H 25,510
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AF+-_A=1+—H 27,046

136

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to an
individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products in the
PRC CGU. The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2016 and
2015 is allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period using a declining growth rate and cash flows over five years are
extrapolated assuming no growth rate, and discount rate of 7.9% (2015:
7%). One key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.
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e KRR E

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE =Ty ] — S e

18. Inventories 18. &

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—FhF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FEx FET
Raw materials BTk 37,109 31,573
Finished goods 2k 22,690 28,602
59,799 60,175
Allowance for obsolete inventories fREFERE (9,957) (13,270)
49,842 46,905

19. Trade and Other Receivables 19. ES R HAEWERT
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT THETT
Trade receivables B SRR 74,448 47963
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIREE (1,476) (6,753)
72,972 41,210
Prepayments SEANE O 6,063 7,016
Other receivables E b pE IR TR 5,593 5,820
Total trade and other receivables 5 R EMEUERFRAREE 84,628 54,046
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HESE—7 X A=+4—HIFE

19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. ES R HMBEWERR (&)
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days (2015: 45 REBHRTHEHESHEF FH30H E60H
days) to its trade customers. The credit period provided to customers can ZEEH (ZZ—RF :458) - 2T
vary based on a number of factors including the customer’s credit profile P EERKEZEREER (BEERP
and sales promotion policy. The aging analysis of trade receivables net of ZIERMRRREHEBER) mMAMRTE -
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the date of delivery of RIBEHMLEER  REEHBFES
goods at the end of the reporting period as follows: 52 B SRR (BEMBRREEB) F
BT
2016 2015
—E-AE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Aged: ARER -
Within credit period EEHR 57,218 31,943
Credit period - 180 days =588 —180H 15,754 9,267
72,972 41,210
Included the Group's receivable balances are debtors with aggregate AEBRKEREHRBREETDE
carrying amount of HK$15,754,000 (2015: HK$9,267,000) which are past 15,754,0007 7t (= Z — A 4F : 9,267,000
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for BIn) RASRE BEE MBI MR - &N
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these SEYEREBEBEELRE &
balances. B2 Bz Em AR a AR
=N
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired: ERHBETTERENE S EREKE
i
2016 2015
—E-AE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Aged: BRER
Credit period - 180 days =EH —180H 15,754 9,267
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
The directors of the Company assessed the credit quality of those debtors
that the balances are past due by reviewing their financial position, the
past repayment record and the experience on any recent history of
default. The amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. The
majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have no history of defaulting on repayments.

e IR R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—AF+-A=t+—HILFE

19. EZ R EMEBEWERR (&)

AAREFHEPERTEEFANGE
EEx FBLHEPBION - BEMNER
FSRAMEAI M B R - RR%A
HIERBEI U2 HKE - AEEWR
SRR EHRFH TR -

BEMERHEFA - AKENAREE
ERGHBEREFPNEEERETHE
VYABEREREE AREHETFPH
BEETEREE - ABOHARAHIK
HENE S RUKRTORE TNETEEN
B -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREEEH
2016 2015
—E—-REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
Balance at the beginning of the year FA)REE 6,753 2,460
Amounts recovered during the year FAWE T (1,364) (324)
Allowance on receivables FEURR N FE 1 950 4,906
Amounts written off as uncollectible SN Al B WGBS RE (4,565) =
Exchange realignment PE 5 3% (298) (289)
Balance at the end of the year FREARE 1,476 6,753

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HKS$1,476,000 (2015:
HK$6,753,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RERB BB IE 1T A B %5 R 2 A9 {3 B
BE 5 MW R R 2 B 48R 351,476,000
BT (ZZT—FHE 6,753,000/ 7T) ° A
& B I R ph 5% F 48 B A BRI A (E (e K 4

[}
oo °
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e VSRR MR

20 =|

For the year ended 31 December 2016
e SW—A e A=+ HIFE

20.

21.

140

Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash 20. CHEBRETER RITERE
REE
In 2015, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and placed bank R-ZE—1F AEELABE THFEHR
deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in order for REEPRAERT ([BERT]) £FR
CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the Group's BiEEARITERIEAERAERRY
acquisition of the land use right. The pledged bank deposits will be RITMEFEE RPN LRE - 2HEFR
released upon the expirations of the guarantee letters. T OB AE R £k B 1% BRBR HE 3 o
In 2015, the Group placed the pledged bank deposits in CMBC for the RZZE—HF  AEEE R LA
said transaction. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the HRTEARERABERIT RZF—
pledged bank deposits was RMB3,054,000 (equivalent to approximately ANFE+ZA=+—8 EHEEITER
HK$3,412,000), of which RMB1,527,000 (equivalent to approximately BREE A A R#30540007T (FHE R4
HK$1,706,000) will be released in 2017 and RMB1,527,000 (equivalent to 3,412,000 7T) + Ef AR 1,527,0007T
approximately HK$1,706,000) will be released in 2018. (FBE PR #1,706,000/87T) R T —+
FRERER - AR®1,527000T (HE
R #91,706,000/8 7T) R —F — )\ F#
FRECHR o
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank deposits of US$510,000 RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H0 &84
(2015: US$697,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$3,958,000 (2015: 510,000 7t (= T — & F : 697,000
HK$5,371,000)) was denominated in a currency other than the functional 70) (A & M #93,958,0008 L (ZF —
currency of the relevant group entity. F 153710008 7)) 2 AEBRITHT
o DIREESEERGEEE NN
BE¥ETE -
Trade and Other Payables 21. ESRHMEMNERR
2016 2015
—B-RE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Trade payables E S REMNIRRK 20,880 14,942
Deposits from customers EFEH® 26,901 36,798
Other tax payables H A ERIHIR 25,654 8476
Accruals &R 48,914 47,499
Other payables H A FEATERK 9,849 9,769
Total trade and other payables B 5 REAMENRFEEE 132,198 117,484
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Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

e IR R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—AF+-A=t+—HILFE

21. EF R EMBENERR (@)
REEHHLEEE  BERASNHER
52 BB EARAERIATIT

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Within 90 days 90HA 20,221 13,239
91 days to 365 days 91HZE365H 215 54
Over 365 days ihiA365H 444 1,649
20,880 14,942

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

Deferred Income

BEEmZVPHEEHROA - NEHE
EFEHBRERERBEE - AERAAE
M ERFARNEERRAEN -

22, EIEW =

2016 2015

=F-"f —FAHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHT

Prepaid treatment fees TANEREE 6,223 6,593

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised in the
profit or loss upon the services to the customers are provided.

ELR SR P HEXTRBMER
EAFR XERRSWIZHE  ER
AEFRHREREBERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HESE—7 X A=+4—HIFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans
(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group
has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the
scheme to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes
at 2% of the total salaries as determined and approved by the
relevant government authorities. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to retirement benefits equal to two months' salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary for
each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than 45
months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The Actuarial
Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation indicates
that the Group's obligations under this defined benefit retirement
scheme are 2% (2015: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the
Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.
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e T RAR MR

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(0

(if)

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the

For the year ended

31 December 2016

HE_Z—FAF+A=+—RHL&FE

23. RIKRERFHE (&)
(a) TEEREE (

&)

() ‘EETREGERAERAZ

actuarial valuations were as follows: FERKRWT :
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—FhF
Discount rate BIR & 1.10% 1.80%
Expected return on plan assets SHEIEE 2 BR[O 3R =& 1.10% 1.80%
Expected rate of salary increases YA EIE &1 iR 2.00% 3.25%

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$7,037,000 (2015: HK$247,000).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined
benefit plans are as follows:

BEEEERTEEEZT
/47,037,000 7T (ZF—H
£ 1 247,000587T) °

iy EREBERRPERZIEER

MEt Bl &8

T -

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-AEF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Current service cost I8 B AR TS AR AN 125 122
Interest on obligations BEIEH A 232 256
Expected return on plan assets SHEIE E 2 FAHAE R (5) (23)
352 355
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—RF+A=1T—HLFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. RIKRERFHE (&)

(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a)
(i)  Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (iii)
(expense) in respect of the defined benefit plans are as

follows:

EHEERNTE (8

EREMEEmKE (FAx) $
BRZERBMGE BN

T

2016 2015
=B ZThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Remeasurement on the net defined BTt = F 5@ F B E/F58 ¢
benefit liability:
— Actuarial gain (loss) arising from — Bt EEA 2 BERE
remeasurement (E518) 715 (398)
— Expected return on plan assets — FTEIEE 2 TEAIER - 51
715 (347)
(v)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of (iv) BiftAZEMBHRRFRZ
financial position arising from the Group's obligations in ERRBHNFTEEELE 2 RE
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BERSREAT ¢
2016 2015
ZE-REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Present value of funded defined EHREREMNER 2 RE
benefit obligations 11,138 12,579
Fair value of plan assets TEIBECATE (7,037) (247)
Net liability arising from defined ERENEREEFRE
benefit obligations 4,101 12,332
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

e IR R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AF+-A=+—AILFE

23. RIKRERFHE (&)
(a) THEERE (8
v AEEFEEMNERBREZ

obligations in the current year were as follows: FEhmr -
2016 2015
—E-AE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January m—H—H 12,579 13,874
Current service cost I8 B AR TS AR AN 125 122
Interest on obligations BB E 232 256
Benefits paid BfEF (1,363) (1,549)
Actuarial (gain) loss BE (W) B8 (715) 398
Exchange differences on foreign plans /85Nt EIME =58 280 (522)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 11,138 12,579

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

v) AFEFEEERAFEZ

“=4

year were as follows: E)) N

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—hF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January R—H—H 247 1,252

Contributions from the employer BEH 6,798 508

Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 TEHA 3R 5 23
Benefits paid BEF - (1,549)

Actuarial gains BEE _ 5
Exchange differences on foreign plans /@5t EIFE i, Z= 48 (13) (38)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7,037 247
Actual return on plan assets FHEIEE BRI 2 (23)
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HESE—7 X A=+4—HIFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

23. BRERGFE @)

)

146

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based on
historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the market
for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

(a) TEHFEBAE (&

(vi)

NEEHEEEAFEZE
g : ()

E=mMERBAERFE IR
BERERBELROMEY
BEMSART @A ZE
BUHETT

AEIEEZEEBRINER
HERESEE R SBRMER
EEEAFEZAS LN

N o

8

2016 2015

—E—RE —“ZE—FhF

% %

Deposits with financial institutions B TS HIE T RR 18.04 17.94
Short term bills HEIEE 2.74 2,54
Stocks f& 5 10.09 9.1
Bonds &5 12.00 1218
Others HAtb 57.13 5823
100.00 100.00

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$883,000 (increase by HK$1,020,000).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by
1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by
HK$897,000 (decrease by HK$798,000).
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(b) Defined contribution plans

0]

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and
6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there
is no cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

RE M IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_ T A"FTTA=T—HILFE

23. BRERGFE @)

(a) ERBAE (&)

(vi)

NEEBHEBEEAFEZH
T : (8)

ESIGURE 547 AT BEIE T
REBBINEHKERE
B AAETHRRALER
BE - BUERR T AR M
T REAMERREIRES -

gEsh - 25 Bl SURE DA
B EEENEHRED
RiEHEAE A RAE
BAGNKALRTE 5t H
RERE MBSO R A HER
ZEBRMNER B E IS
HEAESA -

LU E 5 17 F 5 AT
BARBUBE T LRSS -

(b) EFEMAREE

(i

AEBBER BRI MEQE
S EENEAI AR BB EEIE
PlEESHENERAZEER
SRFIERAEERE (B
BESHE  BREAE
BEEEEX (KER]) &L
wElM BRI E ([AER
BEEtEl]) BHERBEE
ERaERESHTE AARE
MERATE EEHERR
KTl - BRIBEB B BB
EIRaERESE  BE
kg BAE B Rt E{EL #
FHREHANEERNEE
BRARAS%K6% > BHRTE
el ERBRABA LR
30,0008 7T (A=F — M4
NA—BEER mMAE
wEestElvES AIRA L

PR - T EIE RN B R B B
& -
EAEEMRBARAT —T-AFER 147
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

23. BRERGFE @)

148

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

(i)

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$14,790,000
(2015: HK$15,836,000) represents contributions paid on
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

(b)

EBEMENREE ()

(if)

AREBEFBEAENB AR
BERTEHFEE ZBAR
EEERAKRBAFEIKE - B
FAK B QR ERES BER
ME RETEAEREEZ
mEEEREREERLHEZE
BUBERNRGTE - BEEAE
WER Z BRIRE TR B A B
JIERZRTE  HEFNE
KB 2 EARNF & KR F 8
iAE - PEBRTFEERAR
BRRBTHEPRARS - MA
SEAEREBERKRAEE
R - HRBERETHEE
EREAEEFBEAEREES
2 - fEA A TR
8o B Bt 582 4868
BARBAMME - BRTHEDE

MEFHFIN - AEEBE
EREBEREE -

FABRRZIEXNAR
14,790,000/ 70 (ZZT—H4F :
15,836,000% 7T) * JI AN &
BT STHEE MR ES

AERTEIZ R -



25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-Z—RF+-A=1+—HLHFE
24. Share Capital 24, BRAR
Number
of shares Share capital
RGHE [N
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FhRo 1B ITL 2 Emk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R—E—RF—H—H8 "
31 December 2016 —E-RFTZA=1—
—E-RF+ZHA=t 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and Rn—E—RF—HF—AQ8"
31 December 2016 —hRFETZA=1+—AK
—T-RE+A=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210
Share Option Scheme . R FESTEl

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002.

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly the same
as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods was approved at the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) on 13 May 2011. Upon the approval of
the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was terminated at the AGM
on 13 May 2011.

REBRRR_ZZ_F=A+—HBEBE
ZEMRZER  ARARMAT —ERK
et E (B8 TZENERER
HRBTEENAERESR - REES
g ARRAAARBREMBRE
2RES (BERPTESTLIFATES)
BRI REB A Z A - FHRHR
BEZRE/VET - ABALTLERE
H B B RE 528 H AR R 2 RIRKE -
EFfEICARMA T _F=A+—
BEER - BEI+F -

R-E——FHEA+T=ZARTZRRE
FAE (RRBFAE]) £ BRIE
ey R RBCERT 8 ([3ET81)) - #atdlz
R B E & 2 R 2 HFHEITE S
BAE o RFrET S ER - RAFTR
R-E——FREAT=ZARTZERE
FAG LRIERERTERE -
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25.

150

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The
subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less
than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant

option.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or the

refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to shareholders
approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the

limit being exceeded.
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25.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under the

New Scheme was nil.

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options
granted under New Scheme held by employees during the years ended

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR E

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZE— 1+ EH —+—BFE

25. RIREHE (@)
RZEBE-—RAFR=E—"F+ZA=+
— B REFFESREBDERITE
ZRBRERMNEBERT -

TREBRBE_T—HAFR-_FT—RX
Ft-A=T—BLEFEARRFREN

31 December 2015 and 2016: HEER T RS SE 2 R
& :
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Granted Cancelled forfeited Granted Cancelled forfeited
Exercisable Exercise  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Dateofgrant  period price  at1.1.2015 the year the year the year at1.1.2016 the year the year theyear  at31.122016
R=2-1F RIB-RE R-F-7E
-A-A Eh%/  -R-B ERXY/ t=A=t-B
b= s ke HAOR FhiR EH RY HRGE FhiRi EH R HR{TE
19 Aprl 2013 19Apil 2022 to HKS099 14515208 - (1712289 (2802940 - - - - -
== 18 Apri 2023 099757
MATAR ZB-—%MmATHAZ
ZE-=EMATI\A
10May 2013 10May 20210 HKS099 38039918 - (38039918) - - - - - -
2 9May 2003 09977T
RATA Z3-FRATAE
ZTZ=ERANA
6 May 2014 6 May 20310 HKS099 21520584 = (18519433 (3003,151) - - - - -
113 5 May 2004 099787T
RARR ZRCCERASRE
“E-MERARA
2 December 2014 2 December 2023 to HKS099 7607983 - (7607983) - - - - - -
“3E 1 December 2024 95T
e = I S i =
2 mET-R-R
31 March 2015 31 March 2024 to HKS099 = 3500000 (3,500,000 - - - - - -
ik 3 30 March 2025 09977T
ZA=t-B —E-mEZA=t-AZ
“Z-hE-R=1R
81,685,713 3500000 (79379622) (5806091) - - - - -
Bxercisable at the end of the year Nil
ERETE Z
Weighted average evercise price HKS099 HK$099 HKS099 HKS099 Ni Nil Ni Ni Nil
IETERE (98T 099570 09987 09T g £ z z z
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 4 April 2011, the Company granted share options (2011 Options”)
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 90,895,381 shares
and was vested over a four-year period subject to the achievement of
performance targets determined by the board of directors.

On 19 April 2013, the Group cancelled 3,363,528 2011 Options and
accounted for such cancellation as an acceleration of vesting and
therefore recognised immediately approximately HK$919,000 that
otherwise would have been recognised for service received over the
remainder of the vesting period.

Following the cancellation of the aforesaid remaining 2011 Options, an
aggregate of 42,144,222 share options (“2014 Options”) were granted to
the Chief Executive of the Company and other employees of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Each of the 2013 Options and 2014 Options (collectively “the options”)
should be vested over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the
publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the financial
year 2014 (in the case of 2013 Options), year 2015 (in the case of May
2014 Options) and year 2016 (in the case of December 2014 Options)
(respectively referred to as the “First Year’, as the case may be) respectively,
at the rate of up to a maximum of 40% for the First Year and up to a
maximum of 20% for each of the following three years, subject to (i) the
achievement of performance targets for each financial year as determined
by the Board as its sole discretion, and (i) the Option holder remaining an
Eligible Person (as defined in the share option scheme of the Company) at
the time of each vesting of the Options. Also, the option holders can only
exercise the 2014 Options and 2013 Options nine years after the date of
granting the options provided that if the employment or service with the
Company or any of the subsidiaries of the option holders is terminated
with cause or the option holders resign from their employment or service
without good reason (as stipulated in the share option scheme), the
2014 Options and 2013 Options granted but not yet exercised will lapse
automatically. Accordingly, the vesting period for these options under
accounting treatment is regarded as a nine-year period, which is from
the date of grant to the beginning of the earliest exercisable date of the
options.
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. RIREHE (@)
On 31 March 2015, the Company granted share options (“2015 Options") RZZE—RAF=A=+—H X2 AM
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 3,500,000 shares T B 1% H 288 5 %3,500,000/% f% 17
and was vested over a nine-year period subject to the achievement of LEBEHNEHRRE [ZT—R2FR
performance targets determined by the Board of Directors. The estimated feiE]) BRER TG TR EETSETH
fair value of the 2015 Options was approximately HK$404,950. The fair REBRE - T —hFRRENMGETA
value was calculated using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model. FAEA) £3404,95078 7T « R FETIERA =

AR EBEAFE

The inputs into the model were as follows: BRARKX 2BAZ2ENT :
Grant date 31.03.2015
—E-HF
R AH =BA=+—H
Weighted average share price as at date of grant R B H 2 iR (E HK$0.65
0.65/87C
Exercise price 7B HK$0.99
0997 7T
Time to maturity EIHAEAR 10 years
105
Expected volatility B IE 41.69%
Dividend yield RE = 549%
Risk-free interest rate gy [P 142%
Fair value of share options E L AN HK$0.1157
115787
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the AERREATEMERACEHER
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in B DEREEZHKEMGIMED - &
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the HRR “Z‘ﬁ'@bﬂﬁﬁgﬁwﬂﬂgz
options. BB R
Expected volatility was determined by historical daily volatilities of the TERHR R TR B E = E A AR A AR
Company’s share prices as at the valuation date. B2iRFERKIREE -
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 4 September 2015, Next Focus Holdings Limited (“Next Focus”) entered
into an agreement to acquire (the “Acquisition”) the other 50% in the share
capital of Starsign International Limited, which controls approximately
65.63% of the share capital of the Company, not already owned by it from
CA NB Limited (“CA NB"). CA NB is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. Next Focus is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately held as to 40
per cent, 30 per cent. and 30 per cent. by each of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu, Dr. Su
Chien-Cheng and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu, respectively. Each of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu and
Dr. Su Chien-Cheng is currently an executive director while Dr. Su Sh Hsyu
is currently a non-executive director of the Company.

The closing of the Acquisition took place on 16 September 2015. Next
Focus is required to make a mandatory general offer for all the offer
shares of the Company pursuant to note 8 of Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong
code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) and to make an
appropriate offer to the option holders for all share options in compliance
with Rule 13 of the Takeovers Code by way of cancellation of the share
options (collectively, the “Offers”).

On 22 September 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved
to immediate vest all unvested Options granted in 2013, 2014 and 2015
pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme. Accordingly, the Group
recognised all unrecognised share based payment expense in the current
year. Following acceptance of the Offers, the relevant all share options
together with all rights attaching thereto were cancelled in December
2015.

The Group recognised approximately HK$9,334,000 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to
share options granted by the Company during the prior year.
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26. Deferred Taxation 26. IEIEPIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and REESBEFERAB L EZELERE
movements thereon during the current or prior years: BE (BE) UREZFHHINOT :
Undistributed
Allowance Revaluation Other  eamingsof
for bad and of Defined  Unrealised  short-term PRCand
doubtful Inventory  investment benefit profitson  temporary overseas
debts provision  properties liability inventories differences  subsidiaries Total
HE AR
RigHH
Bff EH AR HEES WEARZ
REEEE HEEGE 0 REWE  BAEE  FEEN ENEE  ROREW @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TaT TAT TET
Asat1lanuary 2015 MZZ—H
F—A—H 625 36 674 4920 6,750 (625) (10571) 2,009
Exchange realignment B 5 F3% (37) (199) 1) (83) (164 12 374 (139)
Credit (charge) to profit ~ MEERETA
orloss (30) 1,100 3097 477 (2741) (4939) 1564 (10450) (1189
Earnings distributed EREF - - - - - = 10630 10630
Asat 31 December 2015 RZE—TfF
+-A=t+-H 1688 3134 1,109 20% 1647 951 (10017) 608
Exchange realignment & L 35% (74) (181) 3 62 (108) 3 130 (136)
Credit (charge) to profit ~ MEBERETA
orloss (48%) (1,249) (291) 90) (1461) 970 2032 (10330) (10415)
Farnings distributed EAREN - - - - - - 9257 9257
Asat31 December 2016 MZZ—"F
+ZA=t+-H 369 2662 1,051 697 2509 2986 (10,960) (686)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$83,696,000 (2015: HK$136,060,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$ 144,645,000 (2015: HK$139,409,000).

RERBEER  AEBBRSEB
TA £ 18 4983,696,0008 7T (—Z B —H 4 ¢
136,060,000 7T) ] A 1E 3K 5 K 2K &
Flo MR BABBNIREHUETE - Bt
WERE AR BABRERELERBEE -

ANEEB FHE T B B K RE &GN B
NABZEENF—A—HEBEL
ZARDIREF - 1E T 2 EUE T T 85
H RRAARESERABBAMNGAR
ARERAELSIK - ASBEERFEB
BRGEN 2 B 25 1E L IEE T E R
8 #9144,645000% 7T (Z & — ;1 F
139,409,000567T) °
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27. Operating Leases 27. READ
The Group as lessee REBIERARBEA
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises and FRN - AEERBSEHARERARL
stores under operating leases as follows: EVERIEHHEHSOT ¢
2016 2015
—E-RF —_T—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT
Minimum lease payments FIEEERK 16,683 17,055
Contingent rental payments ARSI 7,110 20,255
23,793 37,310

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

RBEHREER - NEBRET AR
HEEHOZ BRFEHEENK 2 AR
REZIEBERIDT

2016 2015

—E—RE —ET—hF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 19,975 13,527
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZFERF (BIEEREME) 23,992 8676
Over five years BiERF - 558
43,967 22,761

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable,
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such contingent rentals.
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27. Operating Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Property

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,294,000 (2015:
HK$2,573,000), net of outgoings of HK$719,000 (2015: HK$1,011,000) for
renting office premises. All of the properties held have committed tenants

for the next one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease payments:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AF+-A=+—AILFE

27. RKEHEY @)

AEBEAEHBEA

L3
FRAHRDAMBzDERS KT R
2,294,000 T (= & — F F : 2,573,000
) HEHBRBEERAZWEMRX
719,000% 7T (Z & — A F : 1,011,000/8
) c REBERBZMAMERRR—Z
R FEBEREEM -

RBEHRGEER - AREEBEFER]
<z BREEBENKIT

2016 2015
—E—RE —F—hHF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAET
Within one year —FR 2,487 3,419
In the second year to fifth year inclusive FEERF (BREEEMSF) 2,006 3476
Over five years TR 1,435 2,460
5,928 9,355
28. Capital Commitments 28. BREIE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —=—hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHBT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition 2 5] A{B RN A B 1SR
of property, plant and equipment BEEREREYEE
contracted for but not provided BB K& 2 BRI
in the consolidated financial statements 2,538 5,920
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related

158

29. BERBEBALIRZIZEE

parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The

significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows:

(a)

TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Connected parties

FRAREEEBEBADETEAR
5 o REBMIFAES EMRAZRE
ERBABALTTRESBEEAL  F
N AEEREZEATETZIEAR
ST :

(@ X%
(i) EBEEAL

2016 2015
— —T0F
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
DEREW ReHE FEr TET
Companies controlled by individuals who collectively
have joint control over the Company’s ultimate holding
company and are also executive directors
of the Company:
B FE A RI1EH R 1 AR RASIEIR 2 ATF IR 73
AR FTBTTEEZ AN LIS LA
BEBRERBELRNERAR Rental income 14 15
He W
FRECERHARAF Rental income 14 15
ikl 6
Company controlled by substantial shareholder:
FERRHFEHIRE] :
CA NB Limited (Note) Consultancy fee expenses - 2944
CANB Limited (Pfiz) BERERAXL
Directors of the Company:
ARAEE
Individuals who collectively have joint control Rental expenses 6,723 6,323

over the Company’s ultimate holding company
and are also executive directors of the Company

SRARIEGI AR BNKALIER A RFRF A

ARRMITESZEAAL

itk gun

Note: the consultancy services agreement with CA NB Limited was

terminated in September 2015.
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(@) TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i) Compensation of key management personnel

e IR R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AF+-A=+—AILFE

2. BERNRBBALIRZZHE
(&)
(@) X5 (&)
iy ETEEEAS KM

The remuneration of directors and other members of key EEREMETEEEAER
management during the year was as follows: FAZHMEMT :
2016 2015
ZEB-RE —T0F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Short-term benefits S HAIER 6,817 9,924
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEERFTETBRABZME

determined by the remuneration committee having
regarded to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

THFME B SKLSE @A
RIETISBERETE -
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

160

(b)

OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

0]

(if)

(iiif)

On 5 October 2001, Natural Beauty Taiwan entered into
two separate licensing agreements with a director of the
Company. Under the agreements, the director agreed to
license a number of trademarks to Natural Beauty Taiwan, on
an exclusive basis, for a nominal consideration of NTS$1. The
licensing agreements will be effective till the expiry of the
registration of the respective trademarks, which are in 2015
and 2019.

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-
free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and
privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks
on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (the “Licensee”) entered
into a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in
the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or have been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(b) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng,
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio
Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee
entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the
assignors assigned certain trade marks to the assignee for a
consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu as the licensor and the
Company as the licensee entered into a licence agreement
pursuant to which the licensor granted to the licensee a
non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and
irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world to use
certain licensed trademarks only in respect of the businesses
conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10.

On 31 May 2016, Beijing Zhong Ao Yi Natural Beauty
Cosmetics & Hair-Style Training Co Ltd, a sole proprietorship
of Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, as lessor and Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli
Cosmetics Company Limited, a wholly-owned PRC subsidiary
of the Company as lessee entered into a lease agreement
commencing on 1 June 2016 and expiring on 30 April 2019,
at a monthly rental of RMB86,000.

e T RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—AF+-A=t+—HILFE

2. BERBBRAIRGZHE

(&)

(b) HfZH (&)

(iv)

(vi)

BAXEYREERAT

RZZEZENFTATER -
EREELT - HEMNEL
#R =335 18 1+ KNatural Beauty
Magazine Yang Chio Ling ({E
REEA) BARDE (ERE
EAN)IUEEEEE - &
I HEAOB T ZRE
MAEAEES THRE -

R-ZBTFAFETHATAR -
EREEL ERE#EN) K
RRE (ERERET) 7]
MEFR R o B RKE
TA0B T2 RME - MER
RAOTBEMIEER - RIFATE
ERE  Br XKAMET
AR B R R A - A
REREMWERE TEER
1% HEAIERET T
BZEBERBHAAR -

RZE—ARNFREA=Z+—
H FHEXEZBELE
IRFREBAEEREE
KB ER AT (FEAD
FAN) EA R A AP EKEERS
2EWNBRAR EBEEARAES
BilimBRAT (fERK
MA)STYMAERE 8=
T—RNENA—BHRBES
E-FT-NFMNA=+HE
w o A A AREES6,0007T ©
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

162

A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

30. AR T ZBBEMRRKE
AR ZHBERRBEBS T -

follows:
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIZE 169,398 169,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE e 118,920 109,054
Other receivables Hith e U AR X 848 852
Bank balances and cash RITHEFE RIS 2,402 3,544
291,568 282,848
Liabilities BE
Other payables HibEBER 5,042 3,433
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBT B A RIZIA 27,069 29,712
32,111 33,145
Net assets BETFE 259,457 249,703
Capital and reserves AR K
Share capital &N 200,210 200,210
Reserves (Note) s () 59,247 49,493
259,457 249,703
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Statement of Financial Position of the Company 30. &AA R ZB M REKEK (&)
(Continued)
Note: P
Retained
Share profits/
Share option (Accumulated
premium reserve loss) Total
ABE  REEF
BREE e (REER) st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
Asat 1 January 2015 W-Z—HF—A—H 41016 1,775 142912 185,703
Loss for the year REEEE = = (3,235) (3,235)
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment  FERAIXANE 25 45 E IAD TR = 9334 = 9334
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) R AR RS (FE13) = = (142,309) (142,309)
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ-—AF+-A=+—H 41016 11,109 (2632) 49493
Profit for the year RNEERA - = 200354 200354
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) BRAEDIZIRE (HiFE13) = - (190,600) (190,600)
As at 31 December 2016 RIZ—R"Ft+-HA=+—H 41016 11,109 7122 59,247
. . > =
Capital Risk Management 31. EXEREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs or issue of new debt.

AEEERAEREANERAKEETNE
BRHARBELERT  YREXZES
REA RS - B EFRERLOR -
REE 2 BB RS EEFAAR -

AEBZEREBEERENREEE
MARKNRRFER ANRE#ER  BED
BTN - RBERRERT

RRABEEBFF—ERFTERER -
R Ll Eh R EX@ERE
ERARZTRERNZEBRER - REE
E2EFH AREBEBRNEE - &
1T KBRS BEITHEB 277
A FEEBRELRGE -
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32. Financial Instruments

164

(a)

Categories of financial instruments

32. €@ T A
(a) 2RI EER

2016 2015
=F-R"F —FTIF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT THETT
Financial assets SHMEE
Loans and receivables BER R EWERR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREASKESEED) 510,610 558,904
Financial liabilities sRmaE
Amortised cost BEEHRR 30,728 24,711

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
trade and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group's exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need

arise.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances
at the reporting date. For bank balances, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of balances at the end of the
reporting date were outstanding for the whole year. 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease (2015: 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease) are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 20 basis point higher/5 basis points
lower (2015: 20 basis points higher/5 basis points lower) and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would increase
by HK$857,000/decrease by HK$214,000 (2015: increase
by HK$1,005,000/decrease by HK$251,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
bank balances.

e T RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z-—RE+A=+—RHLFE

2. 2T H ()
(b) BIERE

BERBERBE (8)

misEkE (8)

(i)

FIFEfE (&)
BRRE DT
AT SRR E D AT TR R R 1T
,\uﬁ NRE BHAFTE ¥ 2 7
B MEE - BhiR{TAET
ﬁﬁ?' 3T T5 R 5% ¥R 5 HA R
HEBZRTFLHEEFRESE
MEH - AT EEEAER
P FR R A 5K R B B BR AR 2 20
18 2 2 388 0 Ko 518 = 26 R
—T—FF  20(EEZHE M

RSEEHEL) - RBEE
B A% ARBESD
e

i 1) =R 188 hn201E E 25
SEER (ZZ—R4F : 3
0B E 25 R s EEE) -
AT it BB
AEBHE-_Z—XRF+=
B=+—BIEFEZKRIE
i F 5 1#2 H08s57,000% T,
W A2140008 L (Z 2 — A
4+ 3% H01,005,0005% T, B
251,000 7T) * EEZHR
REBEGIRITEFTE L 2T
@R o

BAXEYRIRERAT ZT—AFFH 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g A

7 ==

B TE IR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
A ey H = FR R

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

166

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group's subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged to
HKD, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arisen from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks and pledged bank deposits with good reputation.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

32c.

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the ten largest trade receivable
balances accounted for approximately 60% (2015: 28%) of the
trade receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was
approximately 17% (2015: 6%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC, which accounted for 83% (2015: 88%), and Taiwan,
which accounted for 16% (2015: 11%) of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2016.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2015 and
2016.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

e T RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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32b. I EREEBERBE (&)

32c.
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33.

168

Particulars of Subsidiaries

33. INB A RIS

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 and 2016 are RZE—RAFR=E—"F+ZA=+

as follows:

—B - AAAKBATMRENT -

Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iEx/
HRELR BRTRAR ARARANEAE
ARER Bewy EERRE FisE R TRATELA FEEE IEER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B 53 B% £
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“§-NF “F-5F 8-AF “F-1F —¥-AF “3-IF “§-MF CF-I6
Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC 15529980,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Company Limited* mEAE 29980000 7T beauty products
HEBRARERERA A RERHERERHELRER
XRER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian The PRC RIMB8,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and retal of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited mEAE AEE80000007 and beauty products
HEaRE=BERERAR provision of beaty
treatments and spa sevices
HEREEEEREAER
REZRER KBRS
(Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC RIMB2,500,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products;
Company Limited hEIRRE ARE2500007 provision of beatty treatments
A EREERERAR and skin care and beauty consulting
and training
HEREIGAER
RESAERRERE
FRERRB R
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC 15514800000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limitec™ AR 14800000%7T and beatty products,

LERRZER(ARARAR
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR E

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEZE— 1+ EH —+—BFE

33. B ARFE (@)

Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iifEx/
IR BRTRAR ARARANEAR
R Ty EERRE FeCRTRATELA AREE: IERH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B& 53 B% [ f:3
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 215
ZE-5E ZF-nF Z8-RF ZT-RF CE-~EF CT-RE ZB-RE ZET-RE
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan NT$201,000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited aE FA 2010000007 and beauty products
TERHERRNFRER
Huei Yao Investment Company Taiwan NT$122043420 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Investment holding
Limited fE Hagimar REak
BERARNARLT
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan NT$50,000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of beauty consulting
Company Limited a $A%500000007C and taining
HABEEERERCER REFABRRERRHERAA
BRAF sl
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609858 100% 100% - = - = - - Investment holding
SRED (lass B shares RER
MYR10000
Class A shares
B ABDH
68609858
ARERESS
10000
Bilion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
SRR FREEE products
HEEEREAER
Great Glamour Company Limited BV US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EBURRES SO000ETC REAR
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)
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33. B ARFHE (@)

Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iifEx/
IR BRTRAR ARARENEAR
NAER ey EERRE FeCRTRATELA KRR ELE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& 53 B% [ f:3
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 215
ZE-5E Z5-0F Z8-RF ZT-RF CE-~EF CT-RE ZB-RE ZT-RE
Next Success Intemational Limited BV US$100 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
£BURRES 100%7C REAR
Fortune Investment Global Limited ~~ BVI US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
£BURRES SO000ET REAR
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Hong Kong HK$10000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Sale of cosmetic products and
(Hong Kong) Company Limited &% 1000070 provision of beauty treatments
BRRENRH () AR HEVRERIRIZREE
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited - Hong Kong HK$200000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
AR EERARAT (5 20000E7 REak
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med ~ The PRC 592,600,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited® REARE 260000057 health supplement
LEEREENRERRAT! HERHERER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Beatty The PRC RMB6,000,000 - = 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholesale and
Supplies Company Limited REARE ARE60000007T retal of sin care and beauty
BREREEARRERAA products
FRERRE  HERTEERR
hEn
Notes: ffE -
3 The subsidiary is a foreign investment enterprise with limited liability * EZWE’&ETﬁ_ﬁaﬁK‘EF BB BRE
established in the PRC. EINERE -
** The subsidiary is a Chinese — foreign joint venture established in the PRC. b Eﬁmi@ﬁﬁ—ﬁaﬁﬁéq] BRI B INE
=13k °©

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Financial Summary

B A5 B

Results 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——-F = ZZ-NF —T-—hHF ZEB-XF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FET FET FAT FHExT
REVENUE WA 483,438 439421 505,761 506,913 475,225
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRE A A 155,251 83,052 116,274 170,392 196,217
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FERiExX (36,143) (24,593) (44,794) (33,562) (47,814)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 119,108 58,459 71,480 136,830 148,403
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BAT A L EAEER
(F5R) :
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY KATEEA 119,268 58,269 71,480 136,830 148,403
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS e S (160) 190 = = -
119,108 58459 71480 136,830 148,403
BAZEYRBARAT —T—AEEHR 17



Financial Summary

MEHE

Assets and Liabilities

EERERE

At 31 December

n+=—A=+—H

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—B-—fF —T-=F —T-WF —T-1F ZF-XE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FAT FET FET FAT FHExT

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 884,060 982,067 977,730 888,597 822,186
TOTAL LIABILITIES meE (136,064) (193,809) (203,824) (155969)  (167,513)
747,996 788,258 773,906 732,628 654,673

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ~ Z<2A Bl#EE A FE(L#EZS

OF THE COMPANY 748,183 788,258 773,906 732,628 654,673
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS By (187) = - - -
747,996 788,258 773,906 732,628 654,673
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